

205 CMR 134.00: LICENSING AND REGISTRATION OF EMPLOYEES, VENDORS, JUNKET ENTERPRISES AND REPRESENTATIVES, AND LABOR ORGANIZATIONS

Section

- 134.01: Key Gaming Employee Licensees
- 134.02: Gaming Employee Licensees
- 134.03: Gaming Service Employees
- 134.04: Vendors
- 134.05: Labor Organizations
- (134.06: Junket Enterprises and Junket Representatives: Reserved)
- 134.07: Forms
- 134.08: Submission of Application
- 134.09: Investigation, Determination, and Appeals for Gaming Establishment Employees and Vendors
- 134.10: Affirmative License Standards for the Licensing of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming Establishment
- 134.11: Affirmative Registration Standards for the Registration of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming Establishment and Labor Organizations
- 134.12: Temporary Licenses
- 134.13: Fingerprinting
- 134.14: Identification
- 134.15: Fees
- 134.16: Term of Licenses
- 134.17: Renewals
- 134.18: Duties of Applicants and Licensees
- 134.19: Disciplinary Action

134.01: Key Gaming Employee Licensees

No individual shall be employed by or perform services for a gaming licensee as a key gaming employee, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, unless the individual has been licensed in accordance with M.G.L. c. 23K, §30 and 205 CMR 134.00. There shall be two categories of key gaming employee licensees: key gaming employee- executive and key gaming employee-standard.

(1) An individual holding one of the following positions ~~at a gaming establishment~~, and any person in a similar or equivalent position, regardless of job title, whose employment relates to gaming shall be designated as a key gaming employee- executive:

- (a) Assistant General Manager;
- (b) Chief Internal Audit Officer;
- (c) Gaming Manager;
- (d) Chief Financial Officer;
- (e) Chief of Security;
- (f) General Manager;
- (g) Chief Surveillance Officer;
- (h) Chief Compliance Officer;
- (i) Principal executive Officer;
- (j) Principal operating Officer;
- (k) Principal accounting Officer;
- (l) Chief Information Officer;
- (m) Other executive level employees who are not identified as a key gaming employee-standard in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01(2) as determined by the commission.

(2) An individual holding one of the following positions ~~at a gaming establishment~~, and any person in a similar or equivalent position, regardless of job title, whose employment relates directly to a gaming establishment shall be designated as a key gaming employee- standard:

- (a) Controller;
- (b) Electronic gaming device or slot machines manager;

## 205 CMR: MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

- (c) Human resources manager;
- (d) Information technology manager;
- (e) Pit boss;
- (f) Shift supervisor of table games, of a slot department, credit department, security, surveillance, accounting department, cage, or player development;
- (g) Credit manager;
- (h) Cage manager;
- (i) Hotel Manager;
- (j) Entertainment Director;
- (k) Food & Beverage Manager;
- (l) Other managerial employees who are not identified as a key gaming employee-executive in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01(1), but who are empowered to make discretionary decisions which impact gaming establishment operations, or as determined by the commission.

(3) Any individual who is a qualifier of a gaming licensee but who does not perform any of the duties of the positions identified in 205 CMR 134.01(1)(a) or (b) does not have to become licensed as a key gaming employee. Such individual does have to be approved as a qualifier and issued a positive determination of suitability in accordance with 205 CMR 111.00: *Phase 1 Application Requirements*, 115.00: *Phase 1 Suitability Determination, Standards and Procedures*, and 116.00: *Persons Required to Be Licensed or Qualified*. An individual who has been issued a positive determination of suitability in accordance with 205 CMR 111.00: *Phase 1 Application Requirements* and who will be performing the responsibilities requiring licensure as a key gaming employee shall apply for licensure in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08(2) subject to the term limitation of 205 CMR 134.16(4).

### 134.02: Gaming Employee Licensees

No individual shall be employed by or perform services for a gaming licensee as a gaming employee, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, unless the individual has been licensed in accordance with M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30 and 205 CMR 134.00. An individual holding one of the following positions ~~at a gaming establishment, and any person in a similar or equivalent position, regardless of job title, whose employment relates directly to a gaming establishment shall be designated as a gaming employee:~~

- (a) Boxpersons;
- (b) Cashiers;
- (c) Change personnel;
- (d) Clerks;
- (e) Count room personnel;
- (f) Data processing personnel;
- (g) Dealers and croupiers;
- (h) Floorpersons;
- (i) Gaming Hosts;
- (j) Internal audit and accounting personnel whose duties include reviewing, verifying, and recording gaming revenue entries, the processing or control of active accounting documents related to gaming activity, or that have access to active accounting documents related to gaming activity;
- (k) An individual who is directly connected to the operation or maintenance of a slot machine or game taking place in a gaming establishment (whether employed by the gaming licensee or a vendor licensed in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00);
- (l) Personnel authorized to extend complimentary services, including employees performing functions similar to those performed by a junket representative;
- (m) Junket representative employed by the gaming licensee or affiliate of the gaming license or a junket enterprise licensed as a gaming vendor in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00;
- (n) Personnel authorized to issue credit;
- (o) Personnel authorized to issue promotional play including persons who identify patrons or groups of patrons who shall receive complimentaries based on actual patron play, authorize such complimentaries, or determine the amount of such complimentaries;
- (p) Personnel with security administrator access to a slot machine tracking system;
- (q) Security personnel, including guards and game observers, or an employee with

knowledge of security procedures of the gaming establishment

DRAFT

134.02: continued

- (r) Surveillance personnel, including surveillance equipment maintenance and repair technicians (whether employed by the gaming licensee or a vendor licensed in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00);
- (s) Any employee who conducts or participates in the conduct of gaming, who participates in the transfer or handling of chips, tokens or money, or who participates in audit or accounting functions;
- (t) Any employee whose has access to a restricted area of a gaming establishment;
- (u) A person who supervises a person required to be licensed as a gaming employee in accordance with 205 CMR 134.02;
- (v) An employee of a gaming ~~licensee establishment~~ whom the Bureau deems necessary to be licensed to ensure compliance with the M.G.L. c. 23K and 205 CMR and to protect the public and ensure the credibility and integrity of gaming in the Commonwealth.

134.03: Gaming Service Employees

- (1) An individual employed ~~by a gaming licensee in a gaming establishment~~ who is not classified as a key gaming employee in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01, or a gaming employee in accordance with 205 CMR 134.02, shall be designated as a gaming service employee and shall register in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09 prior to engaging in the provision of employment services. An individual employed by a vendor of a gaming establishment for work in a gaming establishment shall be considered a gaming service employee unless otherwise specified in 205 CMR 134.02.
- (2) During the pre-opening phase of a gaming establishment, and continuing for up to 30 days from the date an Operation Certificate is issued in accordance with 205 CMR, a gaming licensee may temporarily allow an individual(s) who is employed at a gaming property which is owned and/or operated by it, its parent, or an affiliated company to assist with gaming establishment employee training and related purposes for up to 60 days without those individuals having to become licensed or registered in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00, provided that the gaming licensee does the following:
  - (a) Supplies the Bureau a reasonable time in advance of arrival with the name of the individual, name of the gaming property at which they are employed, the position at the gaming property at which they are employed, a description of the reason for the individual being at the gaming establishment including the services to be performed, the anticipated duration of their stay, and any other information requested by the Bureau;
  - (b) Ensures all individuals performing services under 205 CMR 134.03(2) carry identification and wear a badge issued by the gaming licensee that is distinguishable from those that are issued to employees of the gaming establishment and that is clearly visible at all times while at the gaming establishment;
  - (c) If the individual is licensed, certified, or otherwise approved for employment by the jurisdiction which the gaming property in which they are employed is located, an individual licensed as a key gaming employee in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 shall attest in writing that the individual is in good standing in that jurisdiction; and
  - (d) Ensures that the individual is accompanied by an individual who is licensed or registered in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 anytime they are in a restricted area of the gaming establishment.

134.04: Vendors

No person shall conduct business with a gaming licensee as a vendor ~~to a gaming establishment~~ unless such person has been licensed as a gaming vendor, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, or registered as a non-gaming vendor, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00. A person shall be considered to be conducting business upon commencement of performance of a contract or provision of a good or service.

A subcontractor to a vendor shall not be required to obtain licensure or registration under 205 CMR 134.00. For purposes of 205 CMR 134.00 a subcontractor shall be considered a person that contracts with a licensed or registered vendor to provide goods or services

necessary to fulfill the licensed or registered vendor's contract with a gaming licensee. As part of the application process, vendors shall be required to identify all of its known or anticipated subcontractors and shall have a continuing duty to update the Bureau relative to the identification of any new subcontractors. The Bureau may, at its discretion, require the submission of additional information and documents, including but not limited to the Subcontractor Information Form as provided in 205 CMR 134.07(11).

(1) Gaming Vendors.

(a) Gaming Vendors-Primary. A person who conducts business with a gaming applicant or gaming licensee on a regular or continuing basis for provision of goods or services which directly relates to gaming, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, including, but not limited to a person who does any of the following, shall be designated as a gaming vendor-primary:

1. Manufactures, sells, leases, supplies, or distributes devices, machines, equipment (except gaming table layouts), accessories, or items that meet at least one of the following conditions:
  - a. are designed for use in a gaming area as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2;
  - b. are designed for use in a simulcast wagering area;
  - c. are used in connection with a game in the gaming area;
  - d. have the capacity to affect the calculation, storage, collection, electronic security, or control of the gaming revenues from a gaming establishment.
2. provides maintenance services or repairs gaming or simulcast wagering equipment, including slot machines;
3. acts as a junket enterprise; or
4. provides items or services that the Commission has determined are used in or are incidental to gaming or to an activity of a gaming facility.

Exception. Any person, by submission of a written petition, may request a determination from the commission that the person providing goods or services deemed by the Bureau to meet a description contained in 205 CMR 134.04(1)(a) need not be licensed as a Gaming Vendor-primary on the grounds that they are not providing services on a regular or continuing basis or that they do not directly relate to gaming.

(b) Gaming Vendors- Secondary. Any person who regularly conducts over \$250,000 in gross sales with any one gaming licensee within a 12 month period or a person who conducts over \$100,000 in gross sales with any one gaming licensee within a three month period, and who does not otherwise qualify for designation as a Gaming Vendor-primary in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(1)(a) ~~+~~, may be designated a Gaming Vendor-secondary by the ~~Commission~~ **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** regardless of the type of goods or services being provided. **The procedure for making** ~~This designation may~~ **is set forth** ~~be made either by virtue of submission of a Business Entity Disclosure Form Gaming Vendor-secondary application by the vendor in anticipation of meeting the monetary threshold, or in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(3).~~

(2) Non-gaming Vendors. A person who offers to a ~~gaming establishment or~~ gaming licensee goods or services which are not directly related to gaming, as defined by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 2, including, but not limited to any of the following, shall be designated as a non-gaming vendor:

- (1) construction company;
- (2) vending machine provider;
- (3) linen supplier;
- (4) garbage handler;
- (5) maintenance company;
- (6) limousine service company;
- (7) food purveyor;
- (8) supplier of alcoholic beverages;
- (9) a person that sells, distributes, tests, or repairs antique slot machines as described in M.G.L. c. 271, § 5A;
- (10) suppliers of gaming table layouts.

134.04: continued

(3) The Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau may designate a person as a gaming vendor-secondary. In making the determination to designate a vendor as a gaming vendor-secondary, the following factors may, without limitation, be considered: the total dollar amount by which the vendor's business with the gaming licensee is reasonably expected to exceed the thresholds set forth in G.L. c. 23K, § 31(c) and 205 CMR 134.04(1)(b); the relative value of the contract compared to the gaming licensee's overall disbursements to vendors; whether the goods or services are limited to the pre-opening phase of the gaming establishment; the duration of the contract; whether the vendor will be providing goods or services on-site at the gaming establishment; the number of subcontractors involved in the performance of the vendor's contract with the gaming establishment; whether the vendor is licensed, registered or certified and regulated by a governmental or quasi-governmental body or board; the nature of the goods or services; and public safety considerations. ~~shall determine upon consultation with the gaming licensee, review of the Disbursement Report required to be submitted in accordance with 205 CMR, and/or review of the terms of the agreement required to be maintained pursuant to 205 CMR whether a non-gaming vendor has met or is reasonably likely to meet the thresholds provided in 205 CMR 134.04(1)(b). If the Division of Licensing determines that the non-gaming vendor is a gaming vendor-secondary, has met or is likely to meet a threshold, it shall forward notice of such to the vendor of its obligation to submit an application for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary. Within 45 days of service of the notice, the vendor, if already providing goods and/or services to the gaming licensee as a registrant, shall submit a completed *Business Entity Disclosure Form-gaming Vendor-Secondary* as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(3)(b)(7) for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary; discontinue providing the goods and/or services it is contracted to provide, file for an exemption in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(6); or file a written request to the Division of Licensing for reconsideration from the determination requiring filing of an application for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary on the grounds that it is not providing goods or services on a regular or continuing basis. If the vendor is not already providing goods and/or services to the gaming licensee as a registrant, it may file for an exemption in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(6), or file a written request to the Division of Licensing for reconsideration from the determination requiring filing of an application for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary on the grounds that it will not be providing goods and/or services on a regular or continuing basis.~~

(4) Gaming Vendor Qualifier.

(a) ~~Persons designated as gaming vendor qualifiers must establish their qualifications in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09 and 134.10.~~

(b) Gaming vendors-primary. The following persons shall be designated as a gaming vendor-primary qualifiers ~~and must establish their qualifications for licensure in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09 and 134.10:~~

1. If the gaming vendor-primary applicant is a sole proprietor: The owner.
2. If the gaming vendor-primary applicant is a corporation:
  - a. Each officer;
  - b. Each inside director and those outside directors serving on the audit or compliance committees;
  - c. Any person owning more than 5% of the common stock of a company applying for licensure as a gaming vendor-primary as provided by 205 CMR 134.04(1)(a), or a holding, intermediary or subsidiary company of such company;
  - d. Any person who will act as a sales representative or regularly engage in the solicitation of business from a licensed gaming establishment;
  - e. In the judgment of the Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau any person with significant and substantial responsibility for the applicant's business under the jurisdiction of the Commission. ~~in the Commonwealth.~~



134.04: continued

3. If the applicant is a limited liability corporation:
    - a. Each Member;
    - b. Each transferee of a Member's interest;
    - c. Each Manager;
    - d. In the judgment of the **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** any person with significant and substantial responsibility for the applicant's business **under the jurisdiction of the Commission** ~~in the Commonwealth.~~
  4. If the applicant is a limited partnership:
    - a. Each General Partner;
    - b. Each Limited Partner;
    - c. In the judgment of the **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** any person with significant and substantial responsibility for the applicant's **under the jurisdiction of the Commission.** ~~business in the Commonwealth.~~
  5. If the applicant is a partnership:
    - a. Each Partner;
    - b. In the judgment of the **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** any person with significant and substantial responsibility for the applicant's business **under the jurisdiction of the Commission.** ~~in the Commonwealth.~~
- (c) **Gaming vendors-secondary.**
1. If the gaming vendor-secondary applicant is a sole proprietor, the Owner shall be designated as a qualifier.
  2. If the gaming vendor-secondary applicant is a corporation, limited liability corporation, limited partnership, or partnership
    - a. Each Officer, Member, Partner or functional equivalent w expected to exercise operational control over the business under the jurisdiction of the Commission shall be designated as a qualifier;
    - b. Any person who will act as a sales representative or regularly engage in the solicitation of business from a licensed gaming establishment shall be designated as a qualifier;
    - c. Any person owning more than 5% of the common stock of a company applying for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary shall be designated as a qualifier;
    - d. In the judgment of the **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** any person with significant and substantial responsibility for the applicant's business under the jurisdiction of the Commission shall be designated as a qualifier;
    - e. The **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** may designate any person owning more than 5% of the common stock of a holding or intermediary company of an applicant for licensure as a gaming vendor-secondary as a qualifier.
    - f. The **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** may designate any inside director or any outside director or its functional equivalent serving on the audit or compliance committees as a qualifier.
- ~~(b)~~ (d) In all cases, any person who, in the opinion of ~~the commission or the~~ **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau**, can exercise control or provide direction to a gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license or holding, intermediary or subsidiary companies thereof may be designated a ~~Gaming Vendor~~ **gaming vendor** qualifier.
- ~~(e)~~ (e) **Other Qualifiers.** The ~~commission or~~ **Division of Licensing after consultation with the Bureau** may, at its discretion, require other persons that have a business association of any kind with the applicant for a gaming vendor license to be **subject to the qualification requirements as a qualifier** ~~licensed as a gaming vendor qualifier.~~ These persons include, but are not limited to an affiliate or holding, intermediary or subsidiary ~~companies~~ **of the applicant for a gaming vendor license.**
- ~~(d)~~ An applicant may appeal any determination made by the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(4) to the commission by filing a petition on a form prescribed by the commission. The commission shall decide the appeal at a public hearing on the matter at

which it may allow representatives of the petitioner and Bureau to testify.

(5) Waiver. Upon written petition, the commission may waive the requirement to be licensed as a gaming vendor qualifier for:

(a) institutional investors holding up to 15% of the stock of the gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license, or holding, intermediary or subsidiary company thereof, upon a showing by the person seeking the waiver that it purchased the securities for investment purposes only and does not have any intention to influence or affect the affairs or operations of the gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license or a holding, intermediary or subsidiary company thereof. Provided, however, any institutional investor granted a waiver which subsequently determines to influence or affect the affairs or operations of the gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license, or a holding, intermediary thereof shall provide not less than 30 days' notice to the commission of such intent and shall file an application and be subject to the licensing requirements of 205 CMR 134.00 before taking any action that may influence or affect the affairs of the gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license or a holding, intermediary or subsidiary company. Any person holding over 15% of a gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license, or a holding, intermediary or subsidiary company thereof, shall be required to apply for a license before doing business in the Commonwealth; or

(b) Any person who, in the opinion of the Bureau or the commission, cannot exercise control or provide direction to a gaming vendor or applicant for a gaming vendor license or a holding, intermediary or subsidiary company thereof. Provided, however, a person who is not an institutional investor and who holds more than 5% of the common stock of a company, or holding, intermediary or subsidiary company of such a company may not petition for waiver in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(5)(b).

(6) Exemptions. For purposes of 205 CMR 134.04 the following persons engaged in the following fields of commerce who provide goods or services to a gaming applicant or gaming licensee, and that are not otherwise required to be licensed as a key gaming employee, gaming employee, or gaming service employee, shall not be deemed to be conducting business for purposes of M.G.L. c. 23K, § 31 and accordingly shall not be required to obtain licensure or registration as a vendor:

- (a) insurance companies and insurance agencies;
- (b) television, radio, newspaper, internet or other similar media outlets used for advertising purposes;
- (c) transactions with a governmental entity;
- (d) ~~professional~~ legal, accounting, **lobbying** and financial services;
- (e) physicians;
- (f) labor organizations, unions, or affiliates registered in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00;
- (g) utility companies;
- (h) telecommunications companies;
- (i) training seminars, publication subscriptions, conference registration or membership dues for professional associations intended to directly contribute to the work performance or professional development of an employee;
- (j) non-profit charitable corporations or organizations, provided that no consideration is received for the contribution;
- (k) court order or stipulation of settlement or for settlement of guest losses or guest refunds
- (l) payments for freight charges to freight transporters select by the vendor for delivering goods;
- (m) professional entertainers and/or celebrity appearances;
- (n) any ~~other~~ person that, by submission of a written petition, can demonstrate to the ~~commission~~ **Division of Licensing** that registration as a non-gaming vendor is not necessary to protect the public interest.
- (o) **Upon submission of a written certification by a gaming licensee, any person providing goods or services not directly related to gaming to whom the gaming licensee reasonably expects to pay an amount less than \$10,000 within a 12-month period.**



(7) Qualification of New Qualifiers for Gaming Vendors - Primary.

(a) No person requiring qualification pursuant to 205 CMR 134.04(4)(a)(b) may perform any duties or exercise any powers relating to the position that said qualifier is seeking to assume for a Gaming Vendor - Primary licensee unless the person notifies the Bureau in writing within 30 days of appointment to the position. Such notification shall be accompanied by a completed Key Gaming Employee - Standard Application Form. Following such notification and submission of the completed Form, the person may continue to perform duties and exercise powers relating to the position pending qualification.

(b) A person with reason to believe that his or her new position with a Gaming Vendor - Primary may require qualification pursuant to 205 CMR 134.04(4)(a) shall notify the Bureau in writing within 30 days of appointment to the position. Such notification shall be accompanied by a summary of the responsibilities and/or features of the position. The Bureau shall determine whether the person shall be designated a qualifier pursuant to 205 CMR 134.04(4) and shall notify the person of such designation in writing. Within 30 days of designation as a qualifier, the person shall submit a completed Key Gaming Employee - Standard Application Form. Following submission of the completed Form, the person may continue to perform duties and exercise powers relating to the position pending qualification.

(c) The Bureau shall review the Forms submitted by the new qualifier, as well as such other information that the Bureau may request, and, upon completion of its investigation, shall make a determination or recommendation to the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1)(c) whether the new qualifier meets the standards for suitability.

(d) Upon notification by the Bureau of a determination that reasonable cause exists to believe the qualifier may not ultimately be found suitable, a gaming vendor licensee shall promptly remove the qualifier from his or her position until such time as the commission makes its final determination on suitability.

134.05: Labor Organizations

(1) Each labor organization, union or affiliate seeking to represent employees who are employed at a gaming establishment shall register with the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.05.

(2) Within 30 days of the date on which it begins organizing activities directed at the employees who are employed in a gaming establishment, a labor organization, union or affiliate shall file with the ~~Bureau~~ **Division of Licensing** a labor organization registration statement in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08. Organizing activities shall include, without limitation, soliciting membership by means of any direct personal contact, or any public notices such as the posting or distribution of fliers, posters or advertisements.

(3) ~~Each officer, agent or principal employee of the labor organization, union or affiliate shall file a Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08 at the time the pertinent labor organization, union or affiliate registers or should register, or within 30 days of the date on which the individual is elected, appointed or hired, whichever is later, or within such additional time as the Bureau may, upon a showing of good cause, permit.~~

(4) ~~Notwithstanding 205 CMR 134.05 a Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form need not be filed by an officer, agent or principal employee of a national or international labor organization who exercises no authority, discretion or influence over the operation of such labor organization with regard to any employment matter relating to employees who are employed in a Massachusetts gaming establishment provided that the Bureau may direct such officer to file such form or to provide any other information in the same manner and to the same extent as may be required of any other officer of a labor organization which is required to register.~~

(5) Neither a labor organization, union, or affiliate, nor its officers who are not otherwise licensed or registered as a key gaming employee, gaming employee, gaming service employee, gaming vendor, gaming vendor qualifier, or non-gaming vendor, may hold any financial interest in a gaming establishment whose employees are represented by the labor

organization, union, or affiliate.

(134.06: Junket Enterprises and Junket Representatives: Reserved

DRAFT

134.07: Forms**(1) (a) Key Gaming Employee and Gaming Employee License Application Forms**

Every individual applying for a key gaming employee license or a gaming employee license shall be obligated to complete and submit an application to the Division of Licensing. Said application forms shall be created by the Bureau, subject to the approval of the Commission. The Division of Licensing may make non-material changes to the form. The license application forms for key gaming employees and gaming employees shall require, at a minimum, the following information:

1. the name of applicant;
2. the address of applicant;
3. A detailed employment history of the applicant, as prescribed by the Bureau;
4. the fingerprints of the applicant;
5. the criminal and arrest record of the applicant; and
6. any civil judgments obtained against the applicant pertaining to antitrust or security regulation.

(b) The Bureau may require the applicant to provide additional information, as set forth in the application forms, including, but not limited to:

1. information related to the financial integrity of the applicant;
2. bank accounts and records of the applicant;
3. bank references for the applicant;
4. business and personal income and disbursement schedules of the applicant;
5. tax returns and other reports filed by government agencies regarding the applicant;  
and
6. business and personal accounting check records and ledgers of the applicant.

**(2) Gaming Service Employee Registration Form**

Every individual seeking to register as a Gaming Service Employee shall be obligated to complete and submit a registration form to the Division of Licensing. The registration form shall be created by the Bureau and shall request the disclosure of the information deemed necessary by the Bureau. Any changes to the gaming service employee registration form must be approved by the Director of the Bureau.

**(3) Gaming Vendor License Application Form**

(a) Every person applying for a gaming vendor license shall be obligated to complete and submit a business entity disclosure form to the Division of Licensing. Said forms shall be created by the Bureau, subject to the approval of the Commission. The Division of Licensing may make non-material changes to the form. The license application forms for gaming vendors shall require, at a minimum, the following information:

1. The name of applicant;

2. The post office address and, if a corporation, the name of the state under the laws of which it was incorporated, the location of its principal place of business and the names and addresses of its directors and stockholders;
3. The applicant's criminal and arrest record;
4. Any civil judgments obtained against the applicant pertaining to antitrust or security regulation;
5. The identity of every person having a direct or indirect interest in the business and the nature of such interest; provided, however, that if the disclosed entity is a trust, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all beneficiaries; provided further, that if the disclosed entity is a partnership, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all partners, both general and limited; and provided further, that if the disclosed entity is a limited liability company, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all members
6. An independent audit report of all financial activities and interests including, but not limited to, the disclosure of all contributions, donations, loans or any other financial transactions to or from a gaming entity or operator in the past 5 years
7. Clear and convincing evidence of financial stability including, but not limited to, bank references, business and personal income and disbursement schedules, tax returns and other reports filed by governmental agencies and business and personal accounting check records and ledgers.

(b). Every person designated as a qualifier for a gaming vendor under 205 CMR 134.04(4) shall be obligated to complete and submit a disclosure form to the Division of Licensing. Said forms for gaming vendor qualifiers shall be created by the Bureau, subject to the approval of the Commission. The Division of Licensing may make non-material changes to the form.

(4) **Non-Gaming Vendor Registration Form**

Every person seeking to register as a non-gaming vendor shall be obligated to complete and submit a registration form to the Division of Licensing. The registration form shall be created by the Bureau and shall request the disclosure of any information deemed necessary by the Bureau, subject to the approval of the Commission. The Division of Licensing may make non-material changes to the form.

~~(1) Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Disclosure Form for Key Gaming Employees-Executive. The Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Disclosure Form For Key Gaming Employees-Executive shall contain the following information:~~

- ~~(a) Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames and applicable dates of use;~~
- ~~(b) Date of birth;~~
- ~~(c) Physical description;~~
- ~~(d) Current address and residence history;~~
- ~~(e) Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552a;~~
- ~~(f) Citizenship and, if applicable, information regarding resident alien status, including information regarding passports;~~
- ~~(g) Marital history, spouse, dependents and other family data;~~
- ~~(h) The gaming licensee or qualifier, gaming vendor licensee or qualifier or holding company, as applicable, with which the qualifier is affiliated, and the nature of the qualifier's position with or interest in such entity;~~
- ~~(i) Telephone number at the current place of employment, and home number;~~
- ~~(j) Email address;~~
- ~~(k) Employment history of the qualifier and qualifier's immediate family;~~
- ~~(l) Education and training;~~

- ~~(m) Record of military service;~~
- ~~(n) Government positions and offices presently or previously held, and the offices, trusteeships, directorships or fiduciary positions presently or previously held with any business entity;~~
- ~~(o) Trusteeships or other fiduciary positions held by the qualifier and the qualifier's spouse, and any denial or suspension of, or removal from, such positions;~~
- ~~(p) Current memberships in any social, labor or fraternal union, club or organization;~~
- ~~(q) Licenses and other approvals held by or applied for by the qualifier or, where specified, the qualifier's spouse, in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, as follows:~~
  - ~~1. Any professional or occupational license held by or applied for the by the qualifier or the qualifier's spouse;~~
  - ~~2. Motor vehicle registrations and operator licenses held by or applied for the by the qualifier or the qualifier's spouse, and any revocation or suspension thereof;~~
  - ~~3. Possession or ownership of any pistol or firearm, or any application for any firearm permit, firearm dealer's license, or permit to carry a pistol or firearm;~~
  - ~~4. Any license, permit, approval or registration required to participate in any lawful gambling operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any jurisdiction held by or applied for by the qualifier; and~~
  - ~~5. Any denial, suspension or revocation by a government agency of a license, permit or certification held by or applied for by the qualifier or the qualifier's spouse, or any entity in which the qualifier or the qualifier's spouse was a director, officer, partner or any owner of a 5% or greater interest.~~
- ~~(r) Any interest in or employment presently or previously held by the qualifier with any entity which has applied for a permit, license, certificate or qualification in connection with any lawful gambling or alcoholic beverage operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction; and any current employment or other association by the qualifier's family with the gambling or alcoholic beverage industries in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction;~~
- ~~(s) Civil, criminal and investigatory proceedings in any jurisdiction, as follows:~~
  - ~~1. Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant;~~
  - ~~2. Any instance where the applicant has been named as a co-conspirator in a criminal proceeding or held as a material witness;~~
  - ~~3. Any appearance before, investigation by or request to take a polygraph examination by any governmental agency, court, committee, grand jury or investigatory body, and any refusal to comply with a request to do so;~~
  - ~~4. Any pardons, dismissals, suspensions or deferrals of any criminal investigation, prosecution, or conviction;~~
  - ~~5. Lawsuits to which the applicant was or is a party;~~
  - ~~6. Any citation or charge for a violation of a statute, regulation or code or any jurisdiction, other than a criminal disorderly persons, petty disorderly persons or motor vehicle violation; and~~
  - ~~7. Any use, distribution, or possession of any narcotic, hallucinogenic, drug, barbiturate, amphetamine or other substance listed in M.G.L. c. 94C other than pursuant to a valid prescription issued by a licensed physician.~~
- ~~(t) Any exclusion or barring from any casino, gaming establishment or gambling/gaming related entity in any jurisdiction;~~
- ~~(u) Financial data, as follows:~~
  - ~~1. All assets and liabilities of the applicant, and the applicant's spouse and dependent children as indicated on the net worth statement and supporting schedules in a format prescribed by the commission, including cash, bank accounts, notes payable and receivable, real estate and income taxes payable, loans, accounts payable and any other indebtedness, contingent liabilities, securities, real estate interests, real estate mortgages and liens, life insurance, pension funds, vehicles and other assets;~~
  - ~~2. Bank accounts, including any right of ownership in, control over or interest in any foreign bank account, and safe deposit boxes;~~
  - ~~3. Real estate interests held by the applicant or the applicant's spouse or dependent children;~~
  - ~~4. Businesses owned;~~
  - ~~5. Copies of federal tax returns and related information;~~
  - ~~6. Judgments or petitions for bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation concerning the qualifier or any business entity in which the qualifier held a 5% or greater interest,~~

~~other than a publicly traded corporation, or in which the qualifier served as an officer or director;~~

~~7. Any business entity in which the qualifier was an owner, director or officer which has been placed under some form of governmental administration or monitoring;~~

~~8. Any garnishment or attachment of wages, charging order or voluntary wage execution, including the amount, court, nature of the obligation and the holder of the obligation;~~

~~9. Any repossessions of real or personal property;~~

~~10. Any guarantees, co-signatures or insuring of payments of financial obligations of any persons or business entities;~~

~~11. Status as executor, administrator or fiduciary of any estate;~~

~~12. Life insurance policies on the applicant's life which name someone other than the applicant's family as a beneficiary;~~

~~13. Positions held, assets held, or interest received in any estate or trust;~~

~~14. Whether the applicant has ever been bonded for any purpose or been denied any type of bond, including the nature of the bond and if applicable, the reason for denial;~~

~~15. Insurance claims in excess of \$ 100,000.00 by the applicant or the applicant's spouse or dependent children;~~

~~16. Referral or finder's fees in excess of \$ 10,000.00;~~

~~17. Loans in excess of \$ 10,000.00 made or received by the applicant, the applicant's spouse or dependent children;~~

~~18. Gifts in excess of \$ 10,000.00 given or received by the applicant or the applicant's immediate family;~~

~~19. Brokerage or margin accounts with any securities or commodities dealer;~~

~~20. Currency exchanges in an amount greater than \$ 10,000.00;~~

~~21. Information regarding any instance where the applicant or any entity in which the applicant was a director, officer or holder of a 5% or greater interest has traded in foreign currencies or in a foreign commodities exchange, sold or purchased discounted promissory notes or other commercial paper, or been a party to any leasing arrangements in excess of \$ 50,000.00; and~~

~~22. Information regarding any ownership interest or financial investment by the applicant in any entity which holds or is an applicant for a license issued by the commission, or in any gambling venture which does not require licensure by the commission, including persons providing or reasonably anticipated to provide the applicant with support in the financing of such investment or interest; the extent and nature of the applicant's involvement in the management and operation of the entity; whether the applicant has or has agreed to assign, pledge or hypothecate such interest or investment, the nature and terms of any such transaction and a copy of any such agreement.~~

~~(v) The name, address, occupation and phone number of persons who can attest to the qualifier's good character and reputation;~~

~~(w) A signed, dated Statement of Truth affidavit.~~

~~(2) Massachusetts Supplement Form For Key Gaming Employees-Executive. The Massachusetts Supplement Form For Key Qualifiers Gaming Employees-Executive shall contain the following information:~~

~~(a) Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames and applicable dates of use;~~

~~(b) Date of birth;~~

~~(c) Physical description;~~

~~(d) Current address, mailing and home, if different;~~

~~(e) Home, cell, and work telephone numbers;~~

~~(f) Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with 5 U.S.C. § 552a;~~

~~(g) Whether any civil judgments have been obtained against the applicant pertaining to antitrust or security regulation;~~

~~(h) The gaming license applicant or holding company, as applicable, with which the applicant is affiliated, and the nature of the applicant's position with or interest in such entity;~~

~~(i) Citizenship and, if applicable, resident alien status, including any employment authorization with expiration date; country of which the applicant is a citizen, place of birth, port of entry to the United States, and name and addresses of sponsor(s) upon the~~



applicant's arrival;

~~(j) Whether during the last ten years any entity in which the applicant has been a director, officer, principal employee or a holder of 5% or more interest has:~~

- ~~1. Made or been charged with (either itself or through third parties acting for it) bribes or kickbacks to any government official, domestic or foreign, to obtain favorable treatment or to any company, employee or organization to obtain a competitive advantage;~~
- ~~2. Held a foreign bank account or has had authority to control disbursements from a foreign bank account;~~
- ~~3. Maintained a bank account or other account, whether domestic or foreign, which is not reflected on the books or records of the business or which is in a name other than the name of the business;~~
- ~~4. Donated, loaned or used funds or property for the use or benefit or in opposing any government, political party, candidate or committee either domestic or foreign;~~
- ~~5. Compensated any of its directors, officers or employees for time and expenses incurred in performing services for the benefit of or in opposing any government or political party domestic or foreign; or~~
- ~~6. Made any loans, donations or other disbursement to its directors, officers or employees for the purpose of making political contributions or reimbursing such individuals for political contributions whether domestic or foreign;~~
- ~~7. Copies of federal and foreign tax returns and related information for the last five years;~~
- ~~8. The name, address, occupation and phone number of persons who can attest to the qualifier's good character and reputation;~~
- ~~9. A signed, dated and notarized release authorization which shall direct all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, military organizations, selective service boards, employers, education institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the qualifier as requested by the commission, the bureau or a contractor investigator;~~
- ~~10. A signed, dated Statement of Truth;~~
- ~~11. A waiver of liability as to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its instrumentalities and agents for any damages resulting from any disclosure and publication of information acquired during the license or investigation process; and~~
- ~~12. Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and any lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while present in a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming establishment conducted in accordance with 205 CMR.~~

~~(3) Key Gaming Employee Standard Application Form. A Key Gaming Employee Standard Application Form shall contain the following information:~~

- ~~(a) Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames along with applicable dates of usage;~~
- ~~(b) Date and place of birth;~~
- ~~(c) Physical description;~~
- ~~(d) Current address and telephone number, and residence history for the past ten years;~~
- ~~(e) Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with § 7 of the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a;~~
- ~~(f) Citizenship and, if applicable, resident alien status, including any employment authorization and expiration date, country of which the applicant is a citizen, place of birth, port of entry to the United States, and name and address of sponsor(s) upon the applicant's arrival;~~
- ~~(g) Reason for filing the Key Gaming Employee Standard Application Form;~~
- ~~(h) Marital history and other family data;~~
- ~~(i) Employment history, including any gaming-related employment, for the past ten years;~~
- ~~(j) Education and training;~~
- ~~(k) Record of military service;~~
- ~~(l) Licenses and other approvals held by or applied for by the applicant or, where specified, the applicant's spouse, in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, including;~~

- ~~1. Any license, permit, approval or registration required to participate in any lawful gambling operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any jurisdiction;~~
- ~~2. Any denial, suspension or revocation by a government agency in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction of a license, permit, approval or registration held by or applied for by the applicant or the applicant's spouse; and~~
- ~~3. Motor vehicle registrations and operator licenses held by or applied for by the applicant or the applicant's spouse, and any revocation or suspension thereof.~~
- ~~(m) Civil, criminal and investigatory proceedings in any jurisdictions, as follows:~~
  - ~~1. Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant;~~
  - ~~2. Any appearance before, investigation by or request to take a polygraph examination by any governmental agency, court, committee, grand jury or investigatory body;~~
  - ~~3. Lawsuits to which the applicant was or is a party in the past ten years; and~~
  - ~~4. Whether any civil judgments have been obtained against the applicant pertaining to antitrust or security regulation.~~
- ~~(n) Financial data, as follows:~~
  - ~~1. All assets and liabilities of the applicant, and the applicant's spouse and dependent children as indicated on the net worth statement and supporting schedules in a format prescribed by the Commission, including cash, bank accounts, notes payable and receivable, real estate and income taxes payable, loans, accounts payable, credit card debt and any other indebtedness, contingent liabilities, securities, real estate interests, real estate mortgages and liens, life insurance, pension funds, vehicles and other assets;~~
  - ~~2. Bank accounts, including any right of ownership in, control over or interest in any foreign bank account during the last ten year period as well as with regard to safe deposit boxes;~~
  - ~~3. Real estate interests held by the applicant or the applicant's spouse or dependent children in the past ten years regardless of whether such interest was held under a recorded or unrecorded instrument;~~
  - ~~4. Any business in which the applicant has held an ownership interest for the past 20 years;~~
  - ~~5. Copies of federal and state tax returns and related information for the last five years;~~
  - ~~6. Judgments or petitions for bankruptcy or insolvency concerning the applicant or any business entity in which the applicant held a 5% or greater interest, other than a publicly traded corporation, in the past 20 years or in which the applicant served as an officer or director;~~
  - ~~7. Any garnishment or attachment of wages, charging order or voluntary wage execution, during the past ten year period including the amount, court, nature of the obligation and the name and address holder of the obligation;~~
  - ~~8. Positions held or interest received in any estate or trust during the last ten year period;~~
  - ~~9. Insurance claims in excess of \$100,000 by the applicant or the applicant's spouse or dependent children filed within the past ten year period;~~
  - ~~10. Loans in excess of \$10,000 made or received by the applicant, the applicant's spouse or dependent children in the last ten year period;~~
  - ~~11. During the last five year period, any gifts in excess of \$10,000, either individually or in the aggregate, given or received, whether tangible or intangible, by the applicant or the applicant's immediate family in any one year period; and~~
  - ~~12. Referral or finder's fees in excess of \$10,000 in the past ten years.~~
- ~~(o) The name, address, occupation and phone number of persons who can attest to the applicant's good character and reputation;~~
- ~~(p) Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and any lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while present in a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming establishment conducted in accordance with 205 CMR;~~
- ~~(q) A signed, dated and notarized release authorization which shall direct all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, military organizations, selective service boards, employers, education institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all~~

205 CMR: MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

~~governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the applicant as requested by the commission, the bureau or a contractor investigator; and~~  
~~(f) A signed, dated Statement of Truth.~~

~~(4) Gaming Employee License Form. The *Gaming Employee License Form* shall contain the following information:-~~

- ~~(a) Name and address of the applicant;~~
- ~~(b) Detailed employment history;~~
- ~~(c) Education and training;~~
- ~~(d) Record of military service;~~
- ~~(e) Government positions and offices presently or previously held, and offices, trusteeships, directorships or fiduciary positions presently or previously held with any business entity;~~
- ~~(f) Licenses, registrations, permits, certification and other approvals held by or applied for in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction;~~
- ~~(g) Any denial, suspension or revocation by a governmental agency of a license, registration, permit or certification held by or applied for the applicant or any entity in which the applicant a director, officer, partner or an owner of a 5% or greater interest;~~
- ~~(h) Any interest in or employment presently or previously held by the applicant with an entity which has applied for a permit, license, certificate or qualification in connection with any lawful gambling or alcoholic beverage operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction;~~
- ~~(i) Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant;~~
- ~~(j) Civil litigation history where the applicant was or is a party;~~
- ~~(k) Gaming regulatory history;~~
- ~~(l) All governmental financial liens or judgments, including state tax liens, delinquent child support obligations, defaulted student loans, unemployment judgments, unpaid motor vehicle surcharges, welfare judgments, bankruptcy or insolvency findings, wage garnishments;~~
- ~~(m) Whether any civil judgments have been obtained against the applicant pertaining to antitrust or security regulation;~~
- ~~(n) Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and any lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while present in a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming establishment conducted in accordance with 205 CMR;~~
- ~~(o) A signed, dated and notarized release authorization which shall direct all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, military organizations, selective service boards, employers, education institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the applicant as requested by the commission, the bureau or a contractor investigator; and~~
- ~~(p) A signed, dated and notarized Statement of Truth.~~

~~(5) Gaming Service Employee Registration Form. A *Gaming Service Employee Registration Form* shall contain the following information:-~~

- ~~(a) Name, including maiden name and any aliases and nicknames;~~
- ~~(b) Date of birth;~~
- ~~(c) Physical description;~~
- ~~(d) Current address and residence history for the past five years;~~
- ~~(e) Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with § 7 of the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a;~~
- ~~(f) Citizenship, and, if applicable, resident alien status, including any employment authorization and expiration date; country of which the applicant is a citizen, place of birth, port of entry to the United States and name and address of sponsor(s) upon the applicant's arrival;~~
- ~~(g) Last three jobs, and any gaming related employment during the last ten years;~~
- ~~(h) Any license, permit, approval or registration held by or applied for by the applicant and required to participate in any gaming operation in any jurisdiction;~~
- ~~(i) Any license, permit, approval or registration held by the applicant to work in the gaming industry that was suspended, revoked or denied or had any disciplinary action~~

~~taken against in any jurisdiction;~~

~~(j) Any arrest, indictment, charge, or conviction of the applicant;~~

~~(k) All governmental financial liens or judgments, including state tax liens, delinquent child support obligations, defaulted student loans, unemployment judgments, unpaid motor vehicle surcharges, and/or welfare judgments;~~

~~(l) Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, supplying of handwriting exemplars, and any lawful inspection, search, or seizure of the applicant, licensee, or registrant while present in a gaming establishment, and/or their personal effects present in a gaming establishment conducted in accordance with 205 CMR;~~

~~(m) A signed, dated Statement of Truth; and~~

~~(n) A signed, dated and notarized Release Authorization which shall direct all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the applicant as requested by the Commission and/or the Bureau.~~

~~(6) Business Entity Disclosure Form – Gaming Vendor Primary. A Business Entity Disclosure Form Gaming Vendor Primary (BED GVP) shall contain the following information:~~

~~(a) The current or former official and trade names used and the dates of use;~~

~~(b) The current post office address and, if a corporation, the name of the state under the laws of which it was incorporated, the location of its principal place of business and the names and addresses of its directors and stockholders;~~

~~(c) The former business addresses within the last ten year period and dates of use;~~

~~(d) The business telephone number;~~

~~(e) The name, title and telephone number of the contact person;~~

~~(f) Whether the application is for initial licensure or retention of that license and, if retention, the license number and date of last submission;~~

~~(g) The business form and, as appropriate, a copy of the certificate of incorporation, charter, bylaws, partnership agreement and all amendments, trust agreement or other documentation relating to the legal organization of the enterprise;~~

~~(h) If a publicly traded corporation, the stock exchange its stock is traded on and its symbol;~~

~~(i) The Federal Employer Identification Number;~~

~~(j) A description of the present and any former business engaged in or intended to be engaged in by the vendor and any parent, holding, intermediary or subsidiary company within the past five years and similar information for former businesses for the past ten years;~~

~~(k) A description of the nature, type, number of shares, terms, conditions, rights and privileges of all classes of stock issued by the vendor, if any, and the amount outstanding of each, or which the vendor plans to issue;~~

~~(l) The identity of every person having a direct or indirect interest in the business and the nature of such interest; provided, however, that if the disclosed entity is a trust, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all beneficiaries; provided further, that if the disclosed entity is a partnership, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all partners, both general and limited; and provided further, that if the disclosed entity is a limited liability company, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all members;~~

~~(m) The name, address, date of birth (if appropriate), class of non voting stock, number and percentage of shares held by each person or entity having a beneficial interest in any non voting stock;~~

~~(n) The name, home address, date of birth, current title or position and, if applicable, number of shares and class of stock and percentage of ownership for the following persons:~~

~~1. Each officer, director or trustee;~~

~~2. Each partner whether general, limited or otherwise;~~

~~3. A sole proprietor;~~

~~4. Each natural person or entity that directly or indirectly holds any beneficial or ownership interest of 5% or more of the entity completing the form;~~

- ~~5. Each sales representative or other person who will regularly solicit business from a casino licensee;~~
  - ~~6. Each management person who supervises a regional or local office which employs sales or junket representatives or other persons who regularly solicit business from a casino hotel;~~
  - ~~7. Any other person not otherwise specified in 205 CMR 134.07(6)(n)1. through 6. who has signed or will sign any agreement with a gaming licensee;~~
  - ~~8. Each natural person who indirectly holds any beneficial or ownership interest of 10% or more of an applicant for a junket enterprise license; and~~
  - ~~9. If a junket enterprise, each junket representative who will deal directly with gaming licensees and their employees.~~
- ~~(o) A flow chart which illustrates the ownership of any other vendor which holds an interest in the filing vendor;~~
  - ~~(p) The name, last known address, date of birth, position, dates the position was held, and reason for leaving for any former officers or directors who held such office during the preceding ten years;~~
  - ~~(q) The annual compensation of each partner, officer, director and trustee;~~
  - ~~(r) The name, home address, date of birth, position, length of time employed and the amount of compensation of each person, other than the persons identified in 205 CMR 134.07(6)(m), who is currently expected to receive annual compensation of more than \$300,000;~~
  - ~~(s) A description of all bonus, profit sharing, pension, retirement, deferred compensation or similar plans in existence or to be created by the vendor;~~
  - ~~(t) If the vendor is a partnership, a description of the interest held by each partner, whether limited or general, amount of initial investment, amount of additional contribution, amount and nature of any anticipated future investments, degree of control of each partner, percentage of ownership of each partner, and method of distributing profits to each partner;~~
  - ~~(u) A description of the nature, type, terms, covenants, and priorities of all outstanding debt and the name, address and date of birth of each debt holder or security holder, type and class of debt instrument held, original debt amount and current debt balance;~~
  - ~~(v) A description of the nature, type, terms and conditions of all securities options;~~
  - ~~(w) Within the last ten years, the following information for each account held by a bank, savings and loan association or other financial institution, whether foreign or domestic, in the name of the vendor or its nominee or which is otherwise under the direct or indirect control of the vendor:~~
    - ~~1. The name and address of the financial institution;~~
    - ~~2. The type of account;~~
    - ~~3. The account numbers; and~~
    - ~~4. The dates held.~~
  - ~~(x) A description of the ten highest value contracts or agreements in effect during the preceding 12 months to which it is a party including name, address and nature of the contract or goods or service provided;~~
  - ~~(y) A description of any civil, criminal, administrative and investigatory proceedings in any jurisdiction in which the vendor or its subsidiaries have been involved as follows:~~
    - ~~1. Any arrest, indictment, charge or conviction for any criminal or disorderly persons offense;~~
    - ~~2. Any criminal proceeding in which the business or its subsidiaries has been a party or has been named as an unindicted co-conspirator;~~
    - ~~3. Existing civil litigation if damages are reasonably expected to exceed \$100,000, except for claims covered by insurance;~~
    - ~~4. Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of the federal antitrust, trade regulation or securities laws or similar laws of any state, province or country; and~~
    - ~~5. Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of any other state or federal statute, regulation or code which resulted in the imposition of a fine or penalty of \$50,000 or more.~~
  - ~~(z) Within the last ten years, for the vendor and any holding or intermediary company, information regarding any judgments or petitions by or against it for bankruptcy or insolvency and any relief sought under any provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Act or~~

~~any state insolvency law, and any receiver, fiscal agent, trustee, reorganization trustee, or similar officer appointed for the property or business of the vendor or its parent, any holding, intermediary or subsidiary company;~~

~~(aa) Within the last ten years, whether the vendor has had any license or certificate denied, suspended or revoked by any government agency in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, the nature of such license or certificate, the agency and its location, the date of such action, the disposition, the reasons therefore, and the facts related thereto;~~

~~(bb) Whether the vendor has ever applied for a license, permit or authorization to participate in any lawful gaming operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, the agency and its location, date of application, the nature of the license permit or authorization, number and expiration date;~~

~~(cc) Within the last ten years, whether the vendor or any director, officer, partner, employee or person acting for or on behalf of the vendor has made bribes or kickbacks to any employee, company, organization or government official, foreign or domestic, to obtain favorable treatment or to obtain a competitive advantage;~~

~~(dd) The names and addresses of any current or former directors, officers, partners, employees or third parties who would have knowledge or information concerning 205 CMR 124.07(6)(aa);~~

~~(ee) A copy of each of the following:~~

~~1. Annual reports for the past five years;~~

~~2. If the enterprise is a corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, any annual reports prepared within the last five years on Form 10K pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;~~

~~3. An audited financial statement for the last fiscal year, including, without limitation, an income statement, balance sheet and statement of sources and application of funds, and all notes to such statements and related financial schedules;~~

~~4. Copies of all annual financial statements, whether audited or unaudited, prepared in the last five fiscal years, any exceptions taken to such statements by an independent auditor and the management response thereto; and an independent audit report of all financial activities and interests including, but not limited to, the disclosure of all contributions, donations, loans or any other financial transactions to or from a gaming entity or operator in the past five years;~~

~~5. Any current report prepared due to a change in control of the vendor, an acquisition or disposition of assets, a bankruptcy or receivership proceeding, a change in the vendor's certifying accountant or any other material event, or, if the vendor is registered with the SEC, a copy of the most recently filed Form 8K;~~

~~6. The most recent Proxy or Information Statement filed pursuant to § 14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and~~

~~7. Registration Statements filed in the last five years pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933.~~

~~(ff) An organizational chart of the vendor, including position descriptions and the name of the person holding each position;~~

~~(gg) Copies of all Internal Revenue Forms 1120 (corporate income tax return), all Internal Revenue Forms 1065 (partnership return) or all Internal Revenue Forms 1040 (personal return) filed for the last five years;~~

~~(hh) A copy of a business registration certificate or other proof of valid business registration in Massachusetts;~~

~~(ii) A Subcontractor Information Form completed in accordance with 205 CMR 134.07(11), if so authorized by the Bureau;~~

~~(jj) In addition to the information above, a completed BED GVP shall include the following documents, which shall be dated and signed by the president, chief executive officer, partners, general partner, sole proprietor or other authorized person and notarized:~~

~~1. A Statement of Truth;~~

~~2. A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the vendor as requested by the Commission; and~~

~~3. An acknowledgment of receipt of notice regarding confidentiality, and non-refundability of filing fees.~~



~~(7) Business Entity Disclosure Form – Gaming Vendor – Secondary. A Business Entity Disclosure Form – Gaming Vendor – Secondary (BED-GVS) shall contain the following information:~~

- ~~(a) The current or former official and trade names used and the dates of use;~~
- ~~(b) The current post office address and, if a corporation, the name of the state under the laws of which it was incorporated, the location of its principal place of business and the names and addresses of its directors and stockholders;~~
- ~~(c) The former business addresses within the last ten year period and dates of use;~~
- ~~(d) The business telephone number;~~
- ~~(e) The name, title and telephone number of the contact person;~~
- ~~(f) Whether the application is for initial licensure or retention of that license and, if retention, the license number and date of last submission;~~
- ~~(g) The business form and, as appropriate, a copy of the certificate of incorporation, charter, bylaws, partnership agreement and all amendments, trust agreement or other documentation relating to the legal organization of the business;~~
- ~~(h) If a publicly traded corporation, the stock exchange its stock is traded on and its symbol;~~
- ~~(i) The Federal Employer Identification Number;~~
- ~~(j) A description of the nature, type, number of shares, terms, conditions, rights and privileges of all classes of stock issued by the vendor, if any, and the amount outstanding of each, or which the vendor plans to issue;~~
- ~~(k) The identity of every person having a direct or indirect interest in the business and the nature of such interest; provided, however, that if the disclosed entity is a trust, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all beneficiaries; provided further, that if the disclosed entity is a partnership, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all partners, both general and limited; and provided further, that if the disclosed entity is a limited liability company, the application shall disclose the names and addresses of all members;~~
- ~~(l) The name, home address, date of birth, current title or position and, if applicable, number of shares and class of stock and percentage of ownership for the following persons:~~
  - ~~1. Each officer, director or trustee;~~
  - ~~2. Each partner whether general, limited or otherwise;~~
  - ~~3. A sole proprietor;~~
  - ~~4. Each natural person or entity that directly or indirectly holds any beneficial or ownership interest of 5% or more of the entity completing the form;~~
  - ~~5. Each sales representative or other person who will regularly solicit business from a gaming licensee;~~
  - ~~6. Any other person not otherwise specified in 205 CMR 134.07(7)(l)1. through 5. who has signed or will sign any agreement with a gaming licensee.~~
- ~~(m) The annual compensation of each partner, officer, director and trustee;~~
- ~~(n) The name, home address, date of birth, position, length of time employed and the amount of compensation of each person, other than the persons identified in 205 CMR 134.07(7)(l), who is currently expected to receive annual compensation of more than \$300,000;~~
- ~~(o) If the vendor is a partnership, a description of the interest held by each partner, whether limited or general, amount of initial investment, amount of additional contribution, amount and nature of any anticipated future investments, degree of control of each partner, percentage of ownership of each partner, and method of distributing profits to each partner;~~
- ~~(p) A description of the nature, type, terms, covenants, and priorities of all outstanding debt and the name, address and date of birth of each debt holder or security holder, type and class of debt instrument held, original debt amount and current debt balance;~~
- ~~(q) A description of the nature, type, terms and conditions of all securities options;~~
- ~~(r) Within the last ten years, the following information for each account held by a bank, savings and loan association or other financial institution, whether foreign or domestic, in the name of the vendor or its nominee or which is otherwise under the direct or indirect control of the vendor:~~
  - ~~1. The name and address of the financial institution;~~
  - ~~2. The type of account;~~

- ~~3. The account numbers; and~~
- ~~4. The dates held.~~
- ~~(s) A description of any civil, criminal, administrative and investigatory proceedings in any jurisdiction in which the vendor or its subsidiaries have been involved as follows:~~
  - ~~1. Any arrest, indictment, charge or conviction for any criminal or disorderly persons offense;~~
  - ~~2. Any criminal proceeding in which the business or its subsidiaries has been a party or has been named as an unindicted co-conspirator;~~
  - ~~3. Existing civil litigation if damages are reasonably expected to exceed \$100,000, except for claims covered by insurance;~~
  - ~~4. Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of the federal antitrust, trade regulation or securities laws or similar laws of any state, province or country; and~~
  - ~~5. Any judgment, order, consent decree or consent order entered against the vendor pertaining to a violation or alleged violation of any other state or federal statute, regulation or code which resulted in the imposition of a fine or penalty of \$50,000 or more.~~
- ~~(t) Within the last ten years, for the vendor and any holding or intermediary company, information regarding any judgments or petitions by or against it for bankruptcy or insolvency and any relief sought under any provision of the Federal Bankruptcy Act or any state insolvency law, and any receiver, fiscal agent, trustee, reorganization trustee, or similar officer appointed for the property or business of the vendor or its parent, any holding, intermediary or subsidiary company;~~
- ~~(u) Within the last ten years, whether the vendor has had any license or certificate denied, suspended or revoked by any government agency in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, the nature of such license or certificate, the agency and its location, the date of such action, the disposition, the reasons therefore, and the facts related thereto;~~
- ~~(v) Whether the vendor has ever applied for a license, permit or authorization to participate in any lawful gaming operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, the agency and its location, date of application, the nature of the license permit or authorization, number and expiration date;~~
- ~~(w) Within the last ten years, whether the vendor or any director, officer, partner, employee or person acting for or on behalf of the vendor has made bribes or kickbacks to any employee, company, organization or government official, foreign or domestic, to obtain favorable treatment or to obtain a competitive advantage;~~
- ~~(x) The names and addresses of any current or former directors, officers, partners, employees or third parties who would have knowledge or information concerning 205 CMR 134.07(7)(w);~~
- ~~(y) A copy of each of the following:~~
  - ~~1. Annual reports for the past five years;~~
  - ~~2. If the enterprise is a corporation registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, any annual reports prepared within the last five years on Form 10K pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;~~
  - ~~3. An audited financial statement for the last fiscal year, including, without limitation, an income statement, balance sheet and statement of sources and application of funds, and all notes to such statements and related financial schedules;~~
  - ~~4. Copies of all annual financial statements, whether audited or unaudited, prepared in the last five fiscal years, any exceptions taken to such statements by an independent auditor and the management response thereto; and an independent audit report of all financial activities and interests including, but not limited to, the disclosure of all contributions, donations, loans or any other financial transactions to or from a gaming entity or operator in the past five years;~~
  - ~~5. Any current report prepared due to a change in control of the vendor, an acquisition or disposition of assets, a bankruptcy or receivership proceeding, a change in the vendor's certifying accountant or any other material event, or, if the vendor is registered with the SEC, a copy of the most recently filed Form 8K;~~
  - ~~6. The most recent Proxy or Information Statement filed pursuant to § 14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and~~
  - ~~7. Registration Statements filed in the last five years pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933.~~

- ~~(z) An organizational chart of the vendor, including position descriptions and the name of the person holding each position;~~
- ~~(aa) Copies of all Internal Revenue Forms 1120 (corporate income tax return), all Internal Revenue Forms 1065 (partnership return) or all Internal Revenue Forms 1040 (personal return) filed for the last five years;~~
- ~~(bb) A copy of a business registration certificate or other proof of valid business registration in Massachusetts;~~
- ~~(cc) A Subcontractor Information Form completed in accordance with 205 CMR 134.07(11), if so authorized by the Bureau;~~
- ~~(dd) In addition to the information above, a completed BED GVS shall include the following documents, which shall be dated and signed by the president, chief executive officer, partners, general partner, sole proprietor or other authorized person and notarized:~~
  - ~~1. A Statement of Truth;~~
  - ~~2. A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the vendor as requested by the commission; and~~
  - ~~3. An acknowledgment of receipt of notice regarding confidentiality and non-refundability of filing fees.~~

~~(8) Non-gaming Vendor Registration Form. A *Non-gaming Vendor Registration Form* shall contain the following information:~~

- ~~(a) Any official or trade name used by the non-gaming vendor;~~
- ~~(b) The current address and telephone number of the non-gaming vendor;~~
- ~~(c) The nature of the non-gaming vendor's business and the type of goods and services to be provided to a gaming licensee;~~
- ~~(d) The Federal Employer Identification Number;~~
- ~~(e) The name, residence address, social security number, and date of birth of each of the following persons:~~
  - ~~1. The sales representative(s) or other person(s) who solicit(s) business from a gaming licensee or applicant and such person's immediate supervisors; and~~
  - ~~2. Any person authorized to sign any agreement with the gaming licensee or applicant on behalf of the vendor; and~~
  - ~~3. The name(s), address(es) and percentage of ownership held by each entity or person directly owning more than five percent of the enterprise.~~
- ~~(f) A Subcontractor Information Form completed in accordance with 205 CMR 134.07(11), if so authorized by the Bureau.~~
- ~~(g) Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, and the supplying of handwriting exemplars signed by any individual identified in accordant to 205 CMR 134.07(8)(e).~~
- ~~(h) A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the vendor as requested by the Commission.~~

- (5) Labor Organization Registration Statement. Each labor organization, union or affiliate seeking to represent employees who are employed at a gaming establishment shall register with the commission on a form to be created by the Bureau and submitted to the Division of Licensing. Such form shall contain, at a minimum, information to identity the officers, agents and/or principals of the organization and information to establish whether the organization and/or any of its officers, agents or principals hold any financial interest in a gaming establishment whose employees are represented by the organization.

*A Labor Organization Registration Statement* shall contain the following information:

- ~~(a) The name of the registrant as shown on its charter or in its constitution;~~
- ~~(b) The current business addresses of the registrant, including the address, telephone and fax numbers of any office where matters pertaining to employees of a gaming licensee will be conducted;~~
- ~~(c) The name, title, email address, telephone and fax numbers of a primary contact person;~~
- ~~(d) Whether the submission is an initial or biennial renewal registration;~~

- ~~(e) The names of the registrant's parent organization and all affiliates of the registrant or its parent organization, whether chartered by the parent organization or governed by the same constitution or bylaws;~~
- ~~(f) The name and nature of the actual or probable involvement of any affiliate which represents or is seeking to represent employees who are employed in a gaming establishment or which is involved or seeking to be involved in the control or direction of such representation;~~
- ~~(g) Financial data, including information concerning any financial interests held in a gaming establishment; and~~
- ~~(h) The name, address and, where applicable, date of birth, title or position and authority or responsibility, of the following persons or entities:
 
  - ~~1. Any pension or welfare system maintained by the registrant;~~
  - ~~2. Each officer and agent of any pension or welfare system maintained by the registrant;~~
  - ~~3. Each officer and officer-elect of the registrant;~~
  - ~~4. Each agent authorized to represent the registrant in Massachusetts; and~~
  - ~~5. Each principal employee of the registrant.~~~~
- ~~(i) A notarized Statement of Truth, which shall be dated and signed by the registrant's president or other authorized officer;~~
- ~~(j) A waiver of liability as to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its instrumentalities and agents for any damages resulting to the registrant from any disclosure or publication of information acquired during the investigation process;~~

~~(10) Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form. A *Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form* shall contain the following information:~~

- ~~(a) Name, including maiden name and any aliases or nicknames;~~
- ~~(b) Title or position with the labor organization;~~
- ~~(c) Date and place of birth;~~
- ~~(d) Physical description;~~
- ~~(e) Current address and home telephone number, email address, and residence history for the past year;~~
- ~~(f) Social Security Number, which information is voluntarily provided in accordance with § 7 of the Privacy Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552a;~~
- ~~(g) Citizenship and, if applicable, information concerning resident alien status;~~
- ~~(h) Full name of the labor organization represented;~~
- ~~(i) Telephone number and email address at current place of employment;~~
- ~~(j) Employment history:
 
  - ~~1. All positions held with a labor organization, union or affiliate, whether or not compensated, for the past five years; and~~
  - ~~2. Last three jobs, indicating any gaming related positions;~~~~
- ~~(k) Licenses or other approvals held or applied for which are required to participate in any lawful gambling operation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any jurisdiction;~~
- ~~(l) A signed, dated and notarized Statement of Truth;~~
- ~~(m) A waiver of liability as to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its instrumentalities and agents for any damages resulting to the officer, agent or principal employee from any disclosure or publication of information acquired during the investigation process.~~

**(6) Subcontractor Information Form. A Subcontractor Information Form shall be created by the Bureau requesting any information as deemed necessary by the Bureau and submitted to the Division of Licensing.** contain the following information:

- ~~(a) The official or trade name (for purposes of 205 CMR 134.07(11) a subcontractor shall be considered a person that contracts with a licensed or registered vendor to provide goods or services necessary to fulfill the licensed or registered vendor's contract with a gaming licensee);~~
- ~~(b) The current address, telephone number, email address, and any website for the subcontractor;~~
- ~~(c) The nature of the subcontractor's business and the type of goods and services to be provided to the vendor including the term and value of the contract;~~
- ~~(d) The Federal Employer Identification Number of the subcontractor;~~

- ~~(e) The name, residence address, social security number, and date of birth of each of any person authorized to sign any agreement with the vendor on behalf of the subcontractor; and~~
- ~~(f) Consent to fingerprinting, photographing, and the supplying of handwriting exemplars signed by any individual identified in accordance with 205 CMR 134.07(11);~~
- ~~(g) The name(s), address(es) and percentage of ownership held by each entity or person directly owning more than 5% of the enterprise;~~
- ~~(h) A Release Authorization directing all courts, law enforcement agencies, probation departments, selective service boards, employers, educational institutions, banks, financial and other institutions and all governmental agencies, federal, state and local, both foreign and domestic, to release any and all information pertaining to the subcontractor as requested by the commission.~~

#### 134.08: Submission of Application

(1) An application, **disclosure form, or registration** for the initial issuance of a key gaming employee license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01, a gaming employee license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.02, a gaming service employee registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.03, a gaming vendor license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(1), a non-gaming vendor registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(2), a Gaming Vendor qualifier license **disclosure form** in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(1)(c), **and** a Labor Organization registration **statement** in accordance with 205 CMR 134.05, ~~and officers, agents, and principal employees of a Labor Organization in accordance with 205 CMR 134.05~~ shall include all of the following:

(a) A completed application form as follows:

1. An applicant for a key gaming employee-executive license shall file a *Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Disclosure Form For Key Gaming Employees-Executive* as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(1) and a *Massachusetts Supplement Form For Key Gaming Employees-Executive* as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(1)(a)(2);
2. An applicant for a key gaming employee-standard license shall file a Key Gaming Employee-standard Application Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(3);
3. ~~(3)~~An applicant for a gaming employee license shall file a Gaming Employee License Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(1)(a)(4);
4. ~~(4)~~An person seeking to register as a ~~applicant for a~~ gaming service employee ~~registration~~ shall file a Gaming Service Employee Registration Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(2)(a)(5);
5. ~~(5)~~An applicant for a gaming vendor-primary license shall file a Business Entity Disclosure Form-Gaming Vendor-primary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(3)(b)(6);
6. ~~(6)~~An applicant for a Gaming Vendor-secondary license shall file a Business Entity Disclosure Form-Gaming Vendor-secondary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(3)(b)(7);
7. ~~(7)~~**An person seeking to register as applicant for a non-gaming vendor registration** shall file a Non-gaming Vendor Registration Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(4)(a)(8);
8. ~~(8)~~A gaming vendor-primary qualifier (individual) shall file a Key Gaming Employee-standard Application Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(2)(a) **or in the alternative the individual may request authorization from the Bureau to file a Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Disclosure Form and a Massachusetts Supplement;**
9. ~~(9)~~A gaming vendor-secondary qualifier (individual) shall file a Gaming Employee Application Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(2)(a)(4);
10. ~~(10)~~A gaming vendor-primary qualifier (entity) shall file a Business Entity Disclosure Form-Gaming Vendor-primary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(6)(3)(b);
11. ~~(11)~~A gaming vendor-secondary qualifier (entity) shall file a Business Entity Disclosure Form-Gaming Vendor-Secondary as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(7)(3)(b).
12. ~~(12)~~A Labor Organization shall file a Labor Organization Registration Statement as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(5)(a)(9);
13. ~~(13)~~Officers, agents, and principal employees of a Labor Organization shall file a Labor Organization Individual Disclosure Form as set forth in 205 CMR 134.07(10).

- ~~(b) A passport style photograph of the applicant, taken within the preceding 12 months;~~
- ~~(c) Proof of fingerprinting in accordance with 205 CMR 134.13;~~



205 CMR: MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

~~(d) The documents required for identification by 205 CMR 134.14~~

~~(e) Any applicable fee required by 205 CMR 134.15.~~

(b) (For Gaming Employees and Gaming Service Employees) Proof of an offer of employment from a gaming licensee **in the manner prescribed by the Division of Licensing.** ~~pending licensure or registration of the applicant.~~

(c) (For Gaming Vendors-Secondary and Non-Gaming Vendors) Proof of vendor's **business relationship with gaming licensee in the manner prescribed by the Division of Licensing.**

(2) Notwithstanding 205 CMR 134.08(1)(a), a qualifier for a gaming vendor license may, if authorized by the Bureau, file **licensing disclosure** information, including but not limited to, for publicly traded companies, copies of their securities filings and/or audited consolidated financial statements for a period as determined by the Bureau, in *lieu* of the form identified in 205 CMR 134.08(1)(a).

(3) An applicant for a key gaming employee license who has previously been issued a positive determination of suitability by the Commission as part of an RFA-1 investigation may file supplemental licensing information that updates their previous filing submitted as part of the qualifier suitability investigation as directed by the Division of Licensing in *lieu* of the full application identified in 205 CMR 134.08(1)(a).

(4) Each applicant shall file a complete application pursuant to 205 CMR 134.08(1) with the **Division of Licensing in the manner prescribed by the Division of Licensing.** ~~Bureau by mail, in person at the address specified on the application form, or via the Commission's website. The Bureau~~ **Division of Licensing** shall not accept an incomplete application.

(5) Reciprocity for Vendors. If an applicant for a gaming vendor license or non-gaming vendor registration is licensed or registered in another jurisdiction within the United States with comparable license and registration requirements, as determined by the Bureau, and is in good standing in all jurisdictions in which it holds a license or registration, the commission may enter into a reciprocal agreement with the applicant, upon the recommendation of the Bureau, to allow for an abbreviated licensing or registration process and issue a gaming vendor license or registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00; provided, however, as part of any such an agreement that the commission shall reserve its rights to investigate the qualifications of an applicant at any time and may require the applicant to submit to a full application for a gaming vendor license or provide further information for registration. The reciprocal agreement shall identify the nature of the investigation to be conducted prior to issuance of the requested license or registration including, but not limited to, such provisos as the review of any investigatory reports from any jurisdictions in which the applicant is approved to conduct business, interviewing of any witnesses, and the filing of all required Massachusetts business filings.

(6) Scope of Duties. An employee of a gaming establishment may, where otherwise qualified, engage in the following duties without further licensure by the commission:

(a) A person who is licensed as a Key Gaming Employee-executive may, where otherwise qualified, engage in the performance of duties of a Key Gaming Employee-standard, gaming employee or gaming service employee.

(b) A person who is licensed as a Key Gaming Employee-standard may, where otherwise qualified, engage in the performance of duties of a gaming employee or gaming service employee.

(c) A person who is licensed as a gaming employee may engage in the performance of duties of a gaming service employee.

134.09: Investigation, Determination, and Appeals for Gaming Establishment Employees and Vendors

(1) Upon receipt of an application for a key gaming employee license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.01, a gaming employee license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.02, a gaming service employee registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.03, a gaming vendor license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(1), a non-gaming vendor registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(4), **or the disclosure materials from** a gaming vendor qualifier license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.04(4), ~~or a Labor Organization in accordance with 205~~



~~CMR 134.05~~ the Division of Licensing shall conduct a review of each for administrative completeness and then forward the application **or submission** to the Bureau which shall conduct an investigation of the applicant. In the event an application **or submission** is deemed incomplete, the Division of Licensing may either request supplemental information from the applicant **or qualifier, or administratively close the application in accordance with 205 CMR 134.14**~~or forward the application to the commission with a recommendation that it be denied~~. For individuals, the investigation shall include obtaining and reviewing criminal offender record information from the Department of Criminal Justice Information Services (DCJIS) and exchanging fingerprint data and criminal history with the Massachusetts Department of State Police and the United States Federal Bureau of Investigation. The investigation shall be conducted for purposes of determining whether the applicant is suitable to be issued a license or registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.10 and 134.11.

In determining the weight to be afforded any information bearing on suitability in accordance with 205 CMR 134.10 and 134.11, the Division of Licensing, Bureau, or commission, as applicable, shall consider: the relevance of the information to employment in a gaming establishment or doing business with a gaming establishment in general, whether there is a pattern evident in the information, and whether the applicant is likely to be involved in gaming related activity. Further, the information will be considered in the light most favorable to the applicant unless the information cannot be so viewed pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K or the information obtained does not otherwise support such view. For purposes of 205 CMR 134.00 and M.G.L. c. 23K, § 16 an adjudication of delinquency shall not be considered a conviction. Such a finding may, however, be considered for purposes of determining the suitability of an applicant. Records of criminal appearances, criminal dispositions, and/or any information concerning acts of delinquency that have been sealed shall not be considered for purposes of making a suitability determination in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 and M.G.L. c. 23K.

(a) Keys Gaming Employees~~s Executive, Key Gaming Employee Standard, and Gaming Employees~~. Upon completion of the investigation conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) the Bureau shall either approve or deny the application for a key gaming employee ~~executive license, key gaming employee standard license~~ or a gaming employee license pursuant to 205 CMR 134.10. If the application for a Key Gaming Employee ~~standard~~ license or Gaming Employee license is approved, the Bureau shall forward a written approval to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a license to the applicant on behalf of the Commission. ~~If the Bureau approves the application for a Key Gaming Employee executive, the decision shall be forwarded to the Commission as a recommendation along with the application materials for review and issuance of the license.~~ If the application is denied, the Bureau shall forward the ~~recommendation for~~ **determination of** denial and reasons therefor to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a written decision to the applicant explaining the reasons for the denial. The decision shall include an advisory to the applicant that they may **request an appeal hearing before** ~~appeal the decision to~~ the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2). If the denial is based upon information contained in the individual's criminal record the decision shall also include an advisory that the individual will be provided with a copy of their criminal record upon request and that they may challenge the accuracy of any relevant entry therein. The decision may be served via first class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the applicant on the application.

(b) Gaming Service Employees. The Division of Licensing shall issue a gaming service employee registration to the applicant on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(1). In the event that the Bureau determines upon completion of the investigation conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) that the applicant should be disqualified from holding a registration or is otherwise unsuitable in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11, it shall forward the results of the investigation to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a written notice to the registrant **denying or** revoking the registration. The notice shall include an advisory to the applicant that they shall immediately cease employment at the gaming establishment and may request an appeal hearing before the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2). If the denial is based upon information contained in the individual's criminal record the decision shall also

include an advisory that the individual will be provided with a copy of their criminal record upon request and that they may challenge the accuracy of any relevant entry therein. The notice may be served via first class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the applicant on the application.

(c) ~~Gaming Vendors and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers.~~ Upon completion of the investigation conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) the Bureau shall either approve or deny the application for a gaming vendor license pursuant to 205 CMR 134.10. If the Bureau approves the application for a Gaming Vendor license ~~and any associated applications for Gaming Vendor qualifier licenses,~~ the Bureau shall forward a written approval to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a license to the applicant on behalf of the commission. ~~decisions shall be forwarded to the Commission as a recommendation along with the application materials for review and issuance of the license. If an application for a Gaming vendor qualifier license is approved by the Bureau subsequent to the issuance of the Gaming Vendor license by the commission, the Bureau shall forward a written approval to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a license to the applicant on behalf of the Commission. If the application is denied, the Bureau shall forward the recommendation for~~ determination of denial and reasons therefor to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a written decision to the applicant explaining the reasons for the denial. The decision shall include an advisory to the applicant that they may request an appeal hearing before the decision to the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2). If the denial is based upon information contained in a person's criminal record the decision shall also include an advisory that the person will be provided with a copy of their criminal record upon request and that they may challenge the accuracy of any relevant entry therein. The decision may be served via first class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the applicant on the application.

(d) Non-gaming Vendors. The Division of Licensing shall issue a non-gaming vendor registration to the applicant on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(1). In the event that the Bureau determines upon completion of the investigation conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) that the applicant should be disqualified from holding a registration or is otherwise unsuitable in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11, it shall forward the results of the investigation to the Division of Licensing which shall issue a written notice to the registrant denying or revoking the registration. The notice shall include an advisory to the applicant that they shall immediately cease doing business with the gaming establishment and may request an appeal hearing before the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2). If the denial is based upon information contained in the person's criminal record the decision shall also include an advisory that the person will be provided with a copy of their criminal record upon request and that they may challenge the accuracy of any relevant entry therein. The notice may be served via first class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the applicant on the application.

~~(e) Labor Organizations. The Bureau shall issue a Labor Organization registration to the applicant on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(1).~~

(2) If an application for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming service employee registration, gaming vendor license, or non-gaming vendor registration, ~~or gaming vendor qualifier license~~ is denied or revoked in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1) the applicant may appeal the decision and request a hearing before the Bureau within 30 days of service of the decision. The request for an appeal hearing must be in writing on a form provided by the Bureau clerk of the Commission and contain an explanation of the basis for the appeal. Hearings held pursuant to this section shall be held in accordance with 205 CMR 101.03.

~~(3) The Bureau shall appoint a hearing officer to preside over the appeal hearing requested by an applicant in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(2). The hearing will be conducted in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A and 801 CMR 1.02: Informal/Fair Hearing Rules. An audio recording of the hearing shall be taken. The hearing officer shall issue a written decision to the applicant. The hearing officer may affirm the denial of the application or revocation of the registration, reverse the decision and recommend that the license or registration be issued, or recommend that the license or registration be issued with conditions. The hearing officer may recommend any condition that is reasonably calculated to ensure faithful performance of the employee's duties or vendor's obligations. The decision shall include an advisory to the applicant that they may appeal the decision to the commission in accordance with 205 CMR~~

~~134.09(5). The decision may be served via first class mail or via email to the addresses provided by the applicant on the application. Review by the commission of decisions of the hearing officer may be obtained in accordance with 205 CMR 101.04.~~

~~(4) After a hearing conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(3) the following shall apply:-~~

~~(a) If the hearing officer recommends that a Key Gaming Employee standard license, Gaming Employee license, gaming service employee registration, Gaming vendor qualifier, or non-gaming vendor registration be issued, the Division of Licensing shall issue a license or registration to the applicant on behalf of the Commission.-~~

~~(b) If the hearing officer recommends that the application for a Key Gaming Employee executive or Gaming vendor license be issued, the decision shall be forwarded to the Commission as a recommendation along with the application and appeal materials for review and issuance of the license.~~

~~(5) If an application for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming service employee registration, gaming vendor license, non gaming vendor registration, or gaming vendor qualifier is denied or approved with conditions in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(3) the applicant may appeal the decision and request a hearing before the commission within 30 days of service of the decision. The request for an appeal hearing must be in writing on a form provided by the commission and contain an explanation of the basis for the appeal. The hearing will be conducted at a public meeting solely on the record of the administrative proceedings conducted by the Bureau in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(3). The Bureau shall forward a copy of the administrative record of the proceeding to the commission promptly upon receipt of the notice of appeal.-~~

~~(6) After the hearing conducted in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(5) the commission shall issue a written decision to the applicant. The commission may affirm the denial of the application or revocation of the registration, reverse the decision and order that the license or registration be issued, order that the license or registration be issued with conditions or remand the matter to the Bureau for further proceedings. The commission may impose any condition that is reasonably calculated to ensure faithful performance of the employee's duties or vendor's obligations.-~~

~~(7) In reviewing the Bureau's decision in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(6), the commission may consider whether the decision or any condition imposed is:-~~

~~(a) In excess of the statutory or regulatory authority or jurisdiction of the commission; or-~~

~~(b) Based upon an error of law; or-~~

~~(c) Made upon unlawful procedure; or-~~

~~(d) Unsupported by substantial evidence; or-~~

~~(e) Arbitrary or capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law.-~~

~~(8) The decision of the commission made in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(6) and (7) shall be final and an applicant shall not be entitled to further review.-~~

#### 134.10: Affirmative License Standards for the Licensing of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming Establishment

(1) An applicant for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming vendor license, and a gaming vendor qualifier ~~license~~ shall establish its individual qualifications ~~for licensure~~ by clear and convincing evidence.

(2) In determining whether an applicant for licensure is suitable for purposes of being issued a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, ~~or~~ gaming vendor license, ~~or gaming vendor qualifier license~~, or having any of these licenses renewed, the Bureau shall evaluate and consider the overall reputation of the applicant ~~and qualifiers, if any~~, including, without limitation:

(a) the integrity, honesty, good character and reputation of the applicant ~~and qualifiers~~;

(b) the financial stability, integrity and background of the applicant ~~and qualifiers~~;

(c) whether the applicant ~~and its qualifiers have~~ has a history of compliance with gaming licensing requirements in other jurisdictions;

- (d) whether the applicant **or any qualifier**, at the time of application, is a defendant in litigation;
  - (e) whether the applicant is disqualified from receiving a license under 205 CMR 134.10(3);
  - (f) whether the applicant **or any qualifier** has been convicted of a crime of moral turpitude;
  - (g) whether and to what extent the ~~individual~~**applicant or any qualifier** has associated with members of organized crime and other persons of disreputable character;
  - (h) the extent to which the ~~individual~~**applicant and qualifiers have**~~has~~ cooperated with the Bureau in connection with the background investigation;
  - (i) (for vendors) the integrity, honesty, and good character of any subcontractor.
- (3) The Bureau and Commission shall deny an application for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, **or** gaming vendor license, ~~or gaming vendor qualifier license~~ if the applicant:
- (a) has been convicted of a felony or other crime involving embezzlement, theft, fraud or perjury; **except that for such disqualifying convictions under G.L. c. 23K, § 16 and 205 CMR 134.10(3)(a) which occurred before the 10-year period immediately preceding submission of the application for licensure, the Bureau may, in its discretion, approve the issuance of a gaming employee license to an applicant who affirmatively demonstrates rehabilitation in accordance with 205 CMR 134.10(4);**
  - (b) submitted an application for a license under M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30 and 205 CMR 134.00 that **willfully, knowingly or** intentionally contains false or misleading information;
  - (c) committed prior acts which have not been prosecuted or in which the applicant was not convicted but form a pattern of misconduct that makes the applicant unsuitable for a license; or
  - (d) has affiliates or close associates that would not qualify for a license or whose relationship with the applicant may pose an injurious threat to the interests of the commonwealth in awarding a gaming license to the applicant.
- (4) Rehabilitation.
- (a) An applicant for a Key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, **or gaming vendor license or** a gaming vendor qualifier license may provide proof of rehabilitation from a criminal conviction as part of the application for licensure.
  - (b) An applicant for a Key gaming employee license may not appeal a decision made by the Bureau to the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(6) that was based upon a disqualifying prior conviction in accordance with 205 CMR 134.10(3)(a) on the basis that they wish to demonstrate rehabilitation.
  - ~~(c) An applicant for a Gaming employee license or gaming vendor qualifier license may appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a disqualifying prior conviction in accordance with 205 CMR 134.10(3)(a) on the basis that they wish to demonstrate rehabilitation only if the conviction occurred before the ten year period immediately preceding the date of submission of the application for licensure or registration.~~
  - (b) ~~(d)~~In its discretion, the Bureau and/or Commission may issue a Gaming employee license ~~or Gaming vendor qualifier license to an applicant who can affirmatively demonstrate the applicant's rehabilitation.~~ In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant the Bureau and Commission shall consider the following:
    1. the nature and duties of the position of the applicant;
    2. the nature and seriousness of the offense or conduct;
    3. the circumstances under which the offense or conduct occurred;
    4. the date of the offense or conduct;
    5. the age of the applicant when the offense or conduct was committed;
    6. whether the offense or conduct was an isolated or repeated incident;
    7. any social conditions which may have contributed to the offense or conduct; and
    8. any evidence of rehabilitation, including recommendations and references of persons supervising the applicant since the offense or conduct was committed.
  - ~~(c) Any applicant may appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a conviction for a crime of moral turpitude as set forth in 205 CMR 134.10(2)(f). In its discretion, the Bureau and Commission may issue a Key gaming employee license, Gaming employee license, or gaming vendor qualifier license to an applicant who can affirmatively~~



~~demonstrate the applicant's rehabilitation. In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant, the Bureau and Commission shall consider the factors outlined in 205 CMR 134.10(4)(d).~~

(c) ~~(f)~~An applicant for a license or registration shall be at least 18 years of age at the time of application.

134.11: Affirmative Registration Standards for the Registration of Employees and Vendors of the Gaming Establishment and Labor Organizations

(1) Upon submission of an administratively complete ~~application for~~ registration ~~form~~ as a gaming service employee; ~~or~~ non-gaming vendor, ~~or Labor Organization by an applicant the~~ **Division of Licensing Bureau** shall issue the registration on behalf of the Commission in accordance with 205 CMR 134.09(1). A registration may be ~~denied~~ **or** subsequently revoked if it is determined that the applicant is disqualified in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(2) or unsuitable for any criteria identified in 205 CMR 134.11(3).

(2) The Bureau and Commission shall deny and/or revoke a registration as a gaming service employee or non-gaming vendor ~~registrant~~ if the **person** ~~individual applicant or individual identified in 205 CMR 134.07(8)(e):~~

(a) has been convicted of a felony or other crime involving embezzlement, theft, fraud or perjury; ~~except that for such disqualifying convictions under M.G.L. c. 23K, § 16 and 205 CMR 134.11(2)(a) which occurred before the 10-year period immediately preceding submission of the registration, the Bureau may, in its discretion, decline to deny or revoke the registration of a person who affirmatively demonstrates rehabilitation in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(4).~~

(b) submitted an ~~registration form~~ **application** for a license under M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30 and 205 CMR 134.00 that **willfully, knowingly or** intentionally contains false or misleading information;

(c) committed prior acts which have not been prosecuted or in which the **registrant applicant** was not convicted but form a pattern of misconduct that makes the **registrant applicant** unsuitable; or

(d) has affiliates or close associates that would not qualify for a license or whose relationship with the **registrant applicant** may pose an injurious threat to the interests of the commonwealth in awarding a **registration** ~~gaming license to the applicant.~~

(3) In determining whether a **registrant** ~~applicant for registration~~ is suitable for purposes of being issued a gaming service employee registration or non-gaming vendor registration, or having a registration renewed, the Bureau may evaluate and consider the overall reputation of the **registrant applicant** including, without limitation:

(a) the integrity, honesty, good character and reputation of the **registrant applicant**;

(b) the financial stability, integrity and background of the **registrant applicant**;

(c) whether the **registrant applicant** has a history of compliance with gaming licensing requirements in other jurisdictions;

(d) whether the **registrant applicant**, at the time of **submission of the registration form** ~~application~~, is a defendant in litigation;

(e) whether the **registrant applicant** is disqualified from receiving a **registration** ~~license~~ under 205 CMR 134.11(2);

(f) whether the **registrant applicant** has been convicted of a crime of moral turpitude;

(g) whether and to what extent the individual has associated with members of organized crime and other persons of disreputable character;

(h) the extent to which the individual has cooperated with the Bureau in connection with the background investigation;

(i) (for vendors) the integrity, honesty, and good character of any subcontractor.

(4) Rehabilitation.

~~(a) The holder of a Gaming service employee registration or non-gaming vendor registration may appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a disqualifying prior conviction in accordance with 205 CMR 134.11(2) on the basis that they wish to demonstrate rehabilitation only if the conviction occurred before the ten year period immediately preceding application for licensure or registration.~~

~~(b) In its discretion, the Bureau and/or Commission may issue a Gaming service~~

## 205 CMR: MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

~~employee registration or a non-gaming vendor registration to an applicant who can affirmatively demonstrate the applicant's rehabilitation. In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant the Bureau and Commission shall consider the following:~~

1. the nature and duties of the position of the applicant;
2. the nature and seriousness of the offense or conduct;
3. the circumstances under which the offense or conduct occurred;
4. the date of the offense or conduct;
5. the age of the applicant when the offense or conduct was committed;
6. whether the offense or conduct was an isolated or repeated incident;
7. any social conditions which may have contributed to the offense or conduct; and
8. any evidence of rehabilitation, including recommendations and references of persons supervising the applicant since the offense or conduct was committed.

~~(c) Any applicant may appeal a decision made by the Bureau based upon a conviction for a crime of moral turpitude as set forth in 205 CMR 134.11(3). In its discretion, the Bureau and Commission may issue a Gaming service employee registration or non-gaming vendor registration to an applicant who can affirmatively demonstrate the applicant's rehabilitation. In considering the rehabilitation of an applicant, the Bureau and Commission shall consider the factors outlined in 205 CMR 134.11(4)(b).~~

(5) An applicant for a registration shall be at least 18 years of age or older at the time of application.

(6) The Bureau may deny an application for registration as a non-gaming vendor if it determines that the applicant formed the applicant entity for the sole purpose of circumventing 205 CMR 134.04(1)(b).

### 134.12: Temporary Licenses

#### (1) Temporary Licenses for Employees.

(a) Upon petition to the commission by a gaming licensee, the commission may issue a temporary license to an applicant for a key gaming employee license or a gaming employee license if:

1. the applicant for a key gaming employee license or a gaming employee license has filed a completed application with the commission and has submitted all of the disclosure forms as required by the Division of Licensing; and
2. the gaming licensee certifies, and the commission finds, that the issuance of a temporary license is necessary for the operation of the gaming establishment and is not designed to circumvent the normal licensing procedures.

(b) A temporary license shall issue unless:

1. A preliminary review of the Applicant shows that the Applicant is disqualified under one or more of the criteria listed in 205 CMR 134.10(3); or
2. A preliminary review of the Applicant shows that the Applicant will be unable to establish his or her qualifications for licensure under the standards set forth in 205 CMR 134.10(1) and (2).

(c) Unless otherwise stated by the commission, a temporary license issued in accordance with 205 CMR 134.12 shall expire six months from the date of its issuance and may be renewed, at the discretion of the commission, for an additional six-month period.

#### (2) Temporary Licenses for Gaming Vendors.

(a) Upon petition to the commission by a gaming licensee, the commission may issue a temporary license to an applicant for a gaming vendor license if:

1. the applicant for a gaming vendor license has filed a completed application with the commission and has submitted all of the disclosure forms as required by the Division of Licensing; and
2. the gaming licensee certifies, and the commission finds, that the issuance of a temporary license is necessary for the operation of the gaming establishment and is not designed to circumvent the normal licensing procedures.

(b) A temporary license shall issue unless:

1. A preliminary review of the Applicant shows that the Applicant is disqualified under one or more of the criteria listed in 205 CMR 134.10(3); or
2. A preliminary review of the Applicant shows that the Applicant will be unable to



establish his or her qualifications for licensure under the standards set forth in 205 CMR 134.10(1) and (2).

3. Unless otherwise stated by the commission, a temporary gaming vendor license issued under this section shall expire upon issuance of the full license or upon suspension or revocation of the temporary license, and in any event no later than the term of the license as set forth in 205 CMR 134.16(1).

#### 134.13: Fingerprinting

Each applicant for a key gaming employee license, gaming employee license, gaming service employee registration, and each qualifier for a gaming vendor applicant or licensee, shall be fingerprinted under the supervision of the Commission. The Bureau in its discretion may require one or more officers or employees of any non-gaming vendor registrant to be fingerprinted under the supervision of the Commission. The Commission may, for good cause shown, permit an applicant to alternatively submit three sets of classifiable fingerprints on fingerprint impression cards provided by the Commission.

#### 134.14 Administrative Closure of Applications for Registration or Licensure

- (1) All applicants for a Key Gaming Employee License, a Gaming Employee License, a Gaming Vendor License, a Gaming Service Employee Registration or a Non-Gaming Vendor Registration shall promptly respond to any request for information from the Division of Licensing and/or the Bureau. This obligation is in addition to the continuing duty set forth in 205 CMR 134.18(1).
- (2) Failure of an applicant for a Key Gaming Employee License, a Gaming Employee License, or a Gaming Service Employee Registration to respond to a request for information from the Division of Licensing and/or the Bureau within fourteen (14) days of the request may result in the administrative closure of the application for registration or licensure.
- (3) Failure of an applicant for a Gaming Vendor License or a Non-Gaming Vendor Registration to respond to a request for information from the Division of Licensing and/or the Bureau within thirty (30) days of the request may result in the administrative closure of that license application or registration.
- (4) In the event that an application for registration or licensure is administratively closed for failure to provide requested information or to comply with the obligations set forth in 205 CMR 134.18(1), the Division of Licensing will notify the applicant of the specific deficiencies in the application. Additionally, the following conditions will apply:
  - a. Once an application for registration or licensure has been administratively closed it shall not be re-opened for a minimum of thirty (30) days.
  - b. Any request to re-open an application for registration or licensure previously subject to administrative closure requires the applicant to provide all outstanding information as previously detailed in the administrative closure notification from the Division of Licensing. The submission of outstanding information is not a guarantee of licensure/registration. The Division of Licensing and/or the Bureau may in its discretion require a revised full application after considering the potential for stale information in the original application.

#### ~~134.14: Identification~~

~~(1) Every individual applicant for a license or registration shall establish his or her identity to a reasonable certainty.~~

~~(2) An individual applicant for a license or registration may establish their identity pursuant to 205 CMR 134.14(1) by providing either:~~

~~(a) One of the following authentic documents:~~

~~1. A current and valid United States passport;~~

- ~~2. A Certificate of United States Citizenship, or a Certificate of Naturalization, issued by the United States Department of Homeland Security, Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS); or~~
  - ~~3. A current and valid identification card issued by the USCIS containing a photograph or fingerprints and identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address; or~~
  - ~~(b) A certified copy of a birth certificate issued by a state, county or municipal authority in the United States bearing an official seal, and any one of the following authentic documents:-~~
    - ~~1. A current and valid driver's license containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address;~~
    - ~~2. A current and valid identification card issued to persons who serve in the United States military or their dependents by the United States Department of Defense containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address;~~
    - ~~3. A current and valid student identification card containing a photograph, an expiration date, the seal or logo of the issuing institution, and the signature of the card holder;~~
    - ~~4. A current and valid identification card issued by a federal, state or local government agency containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address; or~~
  - ~~(c) A current and valid foreign passport with an employment authorization issued by the USCIS, and any one of the following authentic documents:-~~
    - ~~1. A current and valid driver's license containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address;~~
    - ~~2. A current and valid identification card issued to persons who serve in the United States military or their dependents by the United States Department of Defense containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address;~~
    - ~~3. A current and valid student identification card containing a photograph, an expiration date, the seal or logo of the issuing institution, and the signature of the card holder;~~
    - ~~4. A current and valid identification card issued by a federal, state or local government agency containing a photograph or identifying information such as name, date of birth, sex, height, color of eyes and address.~~
- ~~(3) Any individual whose current legal name is different from the name on his or her certified birth certificate (for example, maiden name) must show legal proof of the name change. Such proof includes a certified marriage or civil union certificate, divorce decree or court order linking the new name with the previous name, provided that, a divorce decree may be used as authority to resume using a previous name only if it contains the new name and permits a return to use of the previous name.~~
- ~~(4) Any individual required to establish his or her identity pursuant to 205 CMR 134.14 who is not a United States citizen shall also be required to demonstrate that he or she is authorized to work in the United States.~~
- ~~(5) Any individual may request that the commission change the name designated on his or her application, license or registration by establishing identity pursuant to 205 CMR 134.14 or by providing a certified copy of certificate of marriage, a divorce decree or court order from this or any other state, which evidences the requested name change.~~

#### 134.15: Fees

- (1) The following non-refundable initial fees shall be paid at the time of application for licensure, registration, or renewal:
  - (a) Key Gaming Employee. Initial fee: \$1000.00, submitted with the application. The applicant shall be billed for the efforts of the Commission and the Bureau on matters directly related to the applicant that exceed the initial fee at hourly rates to be set by the Commission pursuant to M.G.L.c. 23K, § 30(i) including payment for all unusual or out of pocket expenses incurred by the Commission. Timely Renewal fee: \$1000.00.

- (b) Gaming Employee. Initial fee: \$300.00 Renewal fee: \$300.00.
  - (c) Gaming Service Employee. Initial fee: \$75.00 Renewal fee: \$75.00.
  - (d) Gaming Vendor-primary. Initial fee: \$ 15,000.00, submitted with the application. The applicant shall be billed for the efforts of the Commission and the Bureau on matters directly related to the applicant that exceed the initial fee at hourly rates to be set by the Commission pursuant M.G.L. c. 23K, § 30(i) including payment for all unusual or out of pocket expenses incurred by the Commission. Timely Renewal fee: \$ 15,000.00.
  - (e) Gaming Vendor-secondary. Initial fee \$ 5,000.00 Renewal fee \$ 5,000.00.
  - (f) Gaming Vendor-qualifier. No individual fee. The fee shall be included as part of the application fee for the Gaming vendor. Any additional fees resulting from the investigation of a gaming vendor qualifier shall be assessed to the gaming vendor in accordance with 205 CMR 134.15(2).
  - (g) Non-gaming Vendor. Initial fee: \$100.00 Renewal fee: \$100.00.
  - (h) Labor Organization. Initial fee: \$200.00 Renewal fee: \$200.00.
  - (i) Replacement/Name or Address Changes. \$10.00.
  - (j) Late Fee. a 10% late fee will be assessed to the initial application fee if a renewal application is not received by the Commission by the due date.
- (2) The application fee for a license or registration may be increased to the extent that the cost of the background investigation relating to an applicant exceeds the application fee set forth in 205 CMR 134.15(1). The commission shall advise the applicant in writing that an additional application fee is required and the manner in which the additional fee was calculated. Once an applicant is directed to submit an additional application fee, the commission will take no additional steps with respect to the application until the increased application fee is paid. In the event that an application fee is not promptly paid without just cause, the application may be denied.
- (3) All fees must be submitted to the Bureau in the form of a certified check, cashier's check, personal check or electronic funds transfer payable to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- (4) A processing fee of \$30 will be assessed for return of dishonored checks.
- (5) Payroll Deduction. Licensing fees for applicants for a Gaming Employee license in accordance with 205 CMR 134.15(1)(b) and a Gaming Service Employee registration in accordance with 205 CMR 134.15(1)(c) shall be submitted on behalf of the applicant by the gaming establishment or vendor with which the individual is employed. The gaming establishment or vendor may recover the cost of the fee by way of deduction from the individual's periodic salary payment.

#### 134.16: Term of Licenses

- (1) Licenses and registrations issued in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 shall be valid for the following terms:
- (a) Key Gaming Employees. Key Gaming employee licenses shall be for an initial term of five years. The initial term of a key gaming employee license shall expire and be renewable on the last day of the month on the fifth anniversary of the issuance date. Key gaming employee license renewals shall be for a term of three years.
  - (b) Gaming Employees. Gaming employee licenses shall be for an initial term of five years. The initial term of a gaming employee license shall expire and be renewable on the last day of the month on the fifth anniversary of the issuance date. Gaming employee license renewals shall be for a term of three years.
  - (c) Gaming Service Employees. Gaming service employee registrations shall be for an initial term of five years. The initial term of a Gaming service employee registration shall expire and be renewable on the last day of the month on the fifth anniversary of the issuance date. Gaming service employee registration renewals shall be for a term of five years.
  - (d) Gaming Vendors and Gaming Vendor Qualifiers. Gaming vendor licenses and gaming vendor qualifier licenses shall be for an initial term of three years. The initial term of a Gaming vendor license and gaming vendor qualifier license shall expire and be renewable on the last day of the month on the third anniversary of the issuance date.

## 205 CMR: MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

Gaming vendor license and gaming vendor qualifier license renewals shall be for a term of three years.

(e) Non-gaming Vendors. Non-gaming vendor registration shall be for an initial term of five years. The initial term of a Non-gaming vendor license shall expire and be renewable on the last day of the month on the fifth anniversary of the issuance date. Non-gaming vendor registration renewals shall be for a term of five years.

(f) Labor Organizations. Labor organization registrations shall be for an initial term of one year. The initial term of a Labor organization registration shall expire and be renewable on the last day of the month on the first anniversary of the issuance date.

(2) Notwithstanding 205 CMR 134.16(1), licenses and registrations issued in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 may be issued with a conditional expiration date to coincide with any employment authorization issued by the United States which is less than the term of the license or registration. A license or registration that is issued with such a conditional expiration date may be extended upon the presentation of proof of United States citizenship or authorization to work in the United States beyond the previous expiration date. Provided, however, no expiration date shall be extended beyond the term for which such a license would have been issued in accordance with 205 CMR 134.16(1).

(3) If a licensee or registrant has, in accordance with 205 CMR 134.17, made timely and sufficient application for a renewal, their license or registration shall not expire and the applicant shall remain in good standing until the Bureau has issued a decision on the application. If a renewal application is received after the renewal date and the license expires before the Commission issues a new license, the person shall not be employable nor conduct business with the gaming establishment until a new license is issued.

(4) A license for a person for whom a positive determination of suitability was issued in accordance with 205 CMR 115.05(3) as part of the RFA-1 process and who filed an application in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08(2) in *lieu* of the complete application for the position for which they seek licensure shall be issued *nunc pro tunc* to the date of the suitability finding.

(5) All licenses and registrations issued in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00 shall be valid for employment with any Massachusetts gaming licensee.

### 134.17: Renewals

(1) At a minimum of 150 days prior to expiration, each Key gaming employee licensee, gaming employee licensee, gaming vendor licensee, and gaming vendor qualifier licensee shall submit a new and updated application in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08.

(2) At a minimum of 30 days prior to expiration, each gaming service employee registrant and non-gaming vendor registrant shall submit a new and updated application in accordance with 205 CMR 134.08.

(3) It shall be the responsibility of the licensee or registrant to ensure that their license or registration is current.

### 134.18: Duties of Applicants and Licensees

(1) All applicants, licensees, and registrants shall have the continuing duty to provide any assistance or information required by the commission or the Bureau and to cooperate in any inquiry or investigation conducted by the commission or the Bureau. Refusal to answer or produce information, evidence or testimony by an applicant, licensee, or registrant may result in denial of the application or suspension or revocation of the license or registration.

(2) No applicant, licensee, registrant shall willfully withhold information from, or knowingly give false or misleading information to, the commission or the Bureau. If the commission or Bureau determines that an applicant, or a close associate of an applicant, has willfully provided false or misleading information, such applicant shall not be eligible to receive a license or registration under 205 CMR 134.00. Any licensee or registrant who willfully provides false or misleading information shall have its license conditioned, suspended or revoked by the commission.

(3) Notification of Changes by Employees. Each key gaming employee applicant or licensee, gaming employee applicant or licensee, and gaming service employee registrant shall have a continuing duty to notify and update the commission, in writing, within ten days of the occurrence of the following:

- (a) Any denial, suspension or revocation by a government agency in any jurisdiction of a license, registration, certification, permit or approval held by or applied for by the individual;
- (b) Any discipline imposed upon the individual by a government agency in any jurisdiction;
- (c) Any arrest, indictment, charge or criminal conviction of the individual in any jurisdiction;
- (d) Any reports, complaints or allegations of which the individual is or should be aware involving conduct of that individual that could lead to potential criminal charges, including but not limited to allegations of theft or embezzlement; and
- (e) Any exclusion or barring of the individual from any casino, gaming establishment or gambling/gaming related entity in any jurisdiction.

(4) Notification of Changes by Gaming Vendors. Each gaming vendor applicant or licensee shall have a continuing duty to promptly notify and update the commission, in writing, within ten days of the occurrence of the following:

- (a) The proposed appointment, appointment, proposed nomination, nomination, election, hiring, intended resignation, resignation, removal, firing, incapacitation or death of any person required to be a qualifier under 205 CMR 134.04(4);
- (b) Any denial, suspension or revocation by a government agency of a license, registration, certification, permit or approval held by or applied for by the vendor or any qualifying entity or individual;
- (c) Any indictment, charge or criminal conviction of the vendor or any qualifying entity or individual;
- (d) Any civil litigation in which the vendor is named as a party if damages are reasonably expected to exceed \$100,000, except for claims covered by insurance; and
- (e) Any judgments or petitions by or against the vendor, any qualifying entity or individual or any holding or intermediary company of the vendor for bankruptcy or insolvency.

(5) Notification of Changes by Non-gaming Vendors. Each non-gaming vendor registrant shall have a continuing duty to notify the commission, in writing, of the name, residence address, social security number, and date of birth of each relevant person within ten days of the occurrence of the following:

- (a) Any denial, suspension or revocation by a government agency of a license, registration, certification, permit or approval held by or applied for by the vendor or any qualifying individual;
- (b) Any indictment, charge or criminal conviction of the vendor or any qualifying individual;
- (c) The sales representative(s) or other person(s) who solicit(s) business from a gaming licensee; and
- (d) Any person authorized to sign any agreement with the gaming licensee on behalf of the vendor.

(6) Notification of Change of Ownership of Vendor Entities. Each gaming vendor applicant or licensee and each non-gaming vendor registrant shall have a continuing duty to promptly notify and update the commission, in writing, prior to or immediately upon becoming aware of any proposed or contemplated change of ownership which involves more than 5% of the vendor. This duty includes without limitation the duty to specify whether the transaction involving the change in ownership will result in a consolidation involving the vendor and another entity, including by merger or acquisition.

(7) Commission Referral to the Bureau. Upon receipt of a notice under 205 CMR 134.18(3) through (6), the commission shall refer the matter to the Bureau for appropriate handling, which may include, without limitation, a notice to the applicant, licensee or registrant requiring the filing of an appropriate application or information and the subsequent

investigation of that application or information.

134.19: Disciplinary Action

(1) Grounds for Disciplinary Action. Any license or registration issued under 205 CMR 134.00 may be conditioned, suspended, or revoked, if the commission or the Bureau finds that a licensee or registrant has:

- (1) been arrested or convicted of a crime while employed by a gaming establishment and failed to report the charges or the conviction to the commission;
- (2) failed to comply with M.G.L. c. 23K, § 13; or
- (3) failed to comply with any provision of M.G.L. c. 23K or 205 CMR pertaining to licensees and registrants.

(2) Complaints. Any person may file a complaint against any person licensed or registered in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00. All complaints relative to a licensee or registrant must be in writing on a form provided by the Commission. All complaints must be received by the Commission within one year of the date of the alleged wrongdoing. The Commission or Bureau may itself initiate a complaint at any time notwithstanding the date of the alleged wrongdoing.

(3) Basis of Complaint. A complaint must allege wrongdoing by a licensee or registrant in the form of a violation of 205 CMR ~~134.19(1)~~ and/or M.G.L. c. 23K.

(4) Review and Investigation of Complaints. Every complaint filed shall be reviewed by the commission or its designee. A hearing may be convened, the complaint may be forwarded to the Bureau, or the complaint may be dismissed in the discretion of the commission or its designee. The Bureau may, if it elects, investigate a complaint prior to scheduling a hearing. In its discretion, the Bureau may resolve informal patron complaints without formal investigation, notification of parties, or convening a hearing. Failure of a complainant to cooperate in the investigation may be grounds for dismissal of a complaint.

(5) Notice of Hearing. If the Bureau determines that a hearing shall be held to resolve a complaint, reasonable notice shall be provided to the complainant and the licensee or registrant. Mailing of notice to the address on record with the Commission, or emailing the notice to the address provided by the licensee or registrant on their application for licensure or registration, shall be deemed satisfactory notice. The notice of hearing shall contain:

- (a) The name of the complainant;
- (b) The date, time and place of said hearing;
- (c) The location of the incident giving rise to the complaint;-

(6) Hearing. Hearings convened pursuant to 205 CMR 134.19 shall be conducted pursuant to 801 CMR 1.02: *Informal/Fair Hearing Rules* and M.G.L. c. 30A. Any party may be represented by legal counsel. All parties shall be permitted to present an opening statement, testify on their own behalf, cross-examine all witnesses, present any relevant witness testimony, present any relevant documentary evidence, and offer a closing argument. The Bureau may question any witness and include any records kept by the commission as exhibits. The Bureau may conclude the hearing at any time and issue a decision based on the evidence presented.

If a licensee or registrant does not appear for the hearing, the Bureau may conduct a hearing in his or her absence and render a decision based upon the evidence presented, but only after making a finding that the licensee was provided notice as required by 205 CMR 134.19(5).

The Bureau may designate a hearing officer to convene a hearing and either make a recommendation or issue a decision on its behalf.

(7) Subpoenas. The Bureau may issue a subpoena in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 12 requiring the attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of any evidence, including books, records, correspondence or documents, relating to any matter in question in the proceeding.

(8) Decisions and Discipline of License and Registration Holders. The Bureau shall issue a written decision after the hearing. Decisions shall be issued in a reasonably prompt manner. The Bureau may suspend a license or registration for a fixed period of time, revoke a license or registration permanently, or issue a reprimand the licensee or registrant. In conjunction with or in *lieu* of these disciplinary measures, the Bureau may assess a fine pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K, § 36, and recoup the costs of investigation. Any license or registration that is suspended or revoked shall be forwarded to the Bureau immediately. A person whose license is revoked may apply in writing to the commission for reinstatement no sooner than five years from the date of the revocation.

(9) Appeals.

(a) Any person aggrieved by a decision of the hearing officer may, in writing, request review of said decision by the commission. The filing of such a petition shall not serve to stay any disciplinary action taken by the hearing officer.

(b) The commission may review such decision at its discretion. Such review is an administrative review that shall be based solely on the administrative record and is not to be construed as a second hearing on the same complaint(s). After review, the commission may either deny the petition or remand the matter to the hearings officer for further proceedings as directed. The filing of an appeal with the commission shall serve to toll the timing provisions of M.G.L. c. 30A, § 14 until such time as a final decision is rendered by the commission.

(c) Any person aggrieved by a decision of the hearings officer or the commission may appeal such decision in conformance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 14.